Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

Sakinah Sutherland
Governance & Scrutiny Officer
e-mail: Democracy@enfield.gov.uk

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 23rd October, 2024 at 7.00 pm in the Conference
Room, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA

Membership:

co: Nia Stevens (Chair), Josh Abey (Vice-Chair), Nicki Adeleke,

Alessandro Georgiou, Suna Hurman, Destiny Karakus, Joanne Laban,

Elisa Morreale, Julian Sampson and Peter Nwosu

AGENDA - PART 1

1. WELCOME & APOLOGIES

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members of the committee are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary,
other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to the items on the
agenda.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2024.

4. 6 MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT AND
COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY (Pages 5 - 18)

To note the 6 Monthly Progress Report on Internal Audit & Counter Fraud
Activity.

5. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 24/25 (Q3 AND Q4) (Pages 19 - 26)

To agree the 2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Internal Audit Plan.



10.

ANNUAL DATA PROTECTION AND SELF ASSESSMENT OFFICER
REPORT FOR 2023/24 (Pages 27 - 42)

To note the 2023-2024 Annual Data Protection Officer Report.

GRANT THORNTON PROGRESS REPORT ON THE EXTERNAL AUDIT
OF ACCOUNTS FOR 2023/24 (Pages 43 - 62)

To receive the Grant Thornton Progress Report on the External Audit of
Accounts for 2023/24.

GRANT THORNTON VFM OPINION (Pages 63 - 134)
To receive the Grant Thornton VFM opinion report.
BDO UPDATE ON THE EXTERNAL AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS
To receive an update from BDO on the External Audit of Accounts.
TO FOLLOW
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
To note the dates of the future meetings:

Wednesday 29 January 2025
Wednesday 26 March 2025



Public D&¥8itnent Pack Agenda Item 3
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 10.9.2024

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES
COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY, 10TH SEPTEMBER, 2024

MEMBERS: Councillors: Nia Stevens (Chair), Sabri Ozaydin, Josh Abey,
Nicki Adeleke, Alessandro Georgiou, Joanne Laban, Elisa Morreale,
Lee Chamberlain and Peter Nwosu

Officers: Fay Hammond (Executive Director Resources), Annette Trigg (Director
Finance Corporate) and Nicola Robbins (Governance Manager)

Also Attending: Ciaran McLaughlin (BDO) and Sebastian Evans (BDO)

1. WELCOME & APOLOGIES
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Julian Sampson who was
substituted by ClIr Lee Chamberlain.

Clir Destiny Karakus was absent from the meeting.
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received relating to any items on the agenda.
3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting held on Wednesday 24 July were
AGREED subject to an amendment to reflect that Clir Alessandro Georgiou
was in attendance of the July meeting which had been rectified online before
tonight’s meeting.

4. BDO AUDIT REPORT 2019/20

Ciaran McLaughlin (BDO) provided a verbal update on the 2019/20 audit
completion report stating that the accounts are almost final but there are a few
tasks that are still being worked through in order to sign off the accounts.

Having completed the work to date, some issues have been identified in
relation to the prior period adjustment. While they were happy with the asset
side of the transactions, but the reserves side of transactions are less
conclusive so need to ensure there are no material misstatements. There are
some uncertainties based on lack of and/or access to historical records to
support and clarity some of the issues with the transactions.



Page 2
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 10.9.2024

BDO explained that there were three options to be considered in order to get
the accounts ready for final sign off and it would be a matter for the committee
to decide the next steps which were as follows:

1. BDO to issue a modified opinion with a limitation of scope which states they
were not able to reach a view on the two reserve balances but everything else
within the accounts is true and fair;

2. To view all the errors as being pervasive to the account which would bring
the accounts into disclaimer territory but confirmed that this was not the case
at this moment in time;

3. To work towards the audit backstop date (13 December 2024) which was
recently laid down in parliament stating that all audits up to 2022/23 must be
completed and will be implemented at the end of September.

The unadjusted misstatements are set out in the report, but they do not
materially affect the accounts and there be no requirement to be amended.
The committee confirmed that they were not aware of any material frauds that
might impact on the accounts.

Officers suggested that option 1 would be more desirable as it would be
helpful for the auditors going forward when looking into future sets of accounts
as the accounts are fundamentally in a good position which will be used as a
basis for future budget setting.

Members acknowledged that although it has taken a long time to get to this
stage, there had been a lot of errors found which officers had now rectified
sufficiently and considered option 1 to be a good way forward. Members
asked for assurances as to how long the outstanding matters would take to
resolve to which BDO responded would be 4 weeks.

Members expressed concerns of the mid-December backstop date deadline
potentially being missed. BDO responded stating that they have been through
the final accounts in a good level of detail with two levels of review, have
identified where the outstanding issues are which may lead to follow up
guestions but should be fairly straightforward to resolve and were confident
that the mid-December backstop date will not be missed.

Members asked if the extensive work carried out on the 19/20 accounts would
have any bearing on the subsequent audits for 21/22 and 22/23. BDO
responded that the 19/20 audit will have no impact on the 21/22 and 22/23
audits which will not be audited in detail and will most likely roll up to the mid-
December backstop date.

ACTION: BDO to attend the October meeting to provide a further update of
the 19/20 audit. This is to include a more in-depth update on namely; the
Meridian Water Remediation Works, Housing Benefit overpayments,
Temporary Accommodation rent arrears and the sundry debtors.



Page 3
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 10.9.2024

Officers confirmed that the Value for Money statement from Grant Thornton
which will be coming to the next committee meeting will show their views on
the current situation with regard to the 2023/24 audit.

Sebastian Evans (BDO) introduced the Pension Audit Completion report for
19/20 outline the key points. A version of this paper was first brought to the
committee in October 2021 and the findings had not changed much during
this time. There were no unadjusted misstatements, so all of the findings were
adjusted for during the course of the audit which made it straightforward when
informing an opinion. Management overrides of controls which is on all audits
as a mandatory risk but did not find any matters that were cause for concern.

With regard to the pension liability, there was no indication of bias it was just a
case of when the actuarial report was drafted to when it was subsequently
finalised during Covid, there were a lot of changes to actuarial assumptions
during that time and those were reflected in the final accounts. The committee
confirmed that they were not aware of any material frauds that might impact
on the accounts.

The updates were NOTED.

INFORMING RISK ASSESSMENT AUDIT REPORT

Annette Trigg (Director Finance — Corporate) introduced the report outlining
the key points. Officers are to fill out key priority areas across the council,
governance and key stakeholders and provide responses so everyone is
aware of the risks which will be transparent and clearly recorded.

The report was NOTED.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED that the next meeting of the General Purposes Committee will be held
on Wednesday 23 October 2024.



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5

Agenda ltem 4

London Borough of Enfield

Report Title 6 Monthly Progress Report on Internal Audit & Counter
Fraud Activity
Report to General Purposes Committee

Date of Meeting 23 October 2024

Directors Terry Osborne, Director of Law & Governance

Report Author Marion Cameron, Head of Internal Audit
Marion.Cameron@Enfield.gov.uk

Wards affected: All

Classification: Part | Public

Purpose of Report

1. The 6 Monthly Progress Report on Internal Audit & Counter Fraud Activity
at 31 August 2024 (Appendix A) summarises:

progress against the 2024-25 Internal Audit Plan;
detected and prevented fraud identified during the period;
the continued work of the Head of Internal Audit to target limited

audit resources at the highest priority Corporate and Schools’
services.

Recommendations

I.  To note the progress made on the 2024-25 Internal Audit Plan.
II.  To note detected and prevent fraud identified to 31 August 2024




Page 6

Report Author: Marion Cameron
Head of Internal Audit
Marion.Cameron@Enfield.gov.uk
Tel: 0208 132 1065

Appendices

Appendix A: 6 Monthly Progress Report on Internal Audit & Counter
Fraud Activity at 31 August 2024.

Background Papers
None

CE24/11



Page 7

Appendix A

ENFIELD

Council

6 Monthly Progress Report on Internal
Audit & Counter Fraud Activity
31 August 2024

Internal Audit

2024-25 Internal Audit Plan (Q1 & Q2)

4 (31%) of the 13 planned audits had been fully completed by 31 August 2024. 1
audit had an audit opinion (Council Housing Fire Safety — Reasonable), 2 were
grant certifications and 1 was a follow up audit for which a management letter
was issued.

All other audits were in progress at 31 August 2024.

Title Planned Audit Status Assurance
Timing Level

Chief Executive’s

Leavers Process Q2 Fieldwork in progress

Reorganisations New Planning

Cross Cutting

Budget Monitoring Q2 Planning

Temporary Q2 Deferred to Q3

Accommodation

Financial Management

Schools Additional Q1 Fieldwork in progress

Payments

Environment & Communities

Parking Contract Q2 Deferred to Q3

Management

Housing and Regeneration

Voids Q2 Fieldwork in progress

Council Housing Fire Q1 Completed Reasonable

Safety




Page 8

Planned Audit Status Assurance
Timing Level
People
Supporting Families Q1 Q1 Completed N/A- Grant
Certification
Supporting Families Q2 Q2 Fieldwork in progress
Community Equipment Q1 Deferred to Q4
Stock Control
Bus Service Operators Q2 Fieldwork in progress
Grant
Commissioned Services New Fieldwork in progress
Overhead Charges
NDTi Grant Certification New Completed N/A — Grant
Certification
Schools
St. Anne’s Catholic High Q1 Completed N/A-
School for Girls Management
Letter
Orchardside School Q2 Completed N/A- Grant
Alternate Provision Certification
Taskforces Programme
Grant 2023-24

Changes to the 2024-25 (Q1 & Q2) Internal Audit Plan

3 audits have been deferred into the second half of the year:

Department Reason for Deferral

Cross Temporary Deferred to Q3 to allow the team
Cutting Accommodation to deal with operational issues
Financial Management | and to allow improvement
initiatives to embed.

Environment | Parking Contract Deferred to Q3 as a contract

& Management management review was

Communities underway. was

People Community Equipment | Deferred to Q4. New location and
Stock Control change in software provider taking

place. Also due to be inspected by
external auditors — CEOPS.

3 audits were added to the plan during the period to 31 August 2024



Page 9

Chief Reorganisations To ensure the appropriate
Executive’s policies and procedures are
being applied to internal
reorganisations
People Commissioned To ensure that appropriate
Services Overhead contract management is
Charges applied with respect to NHS
overhead charges.
People NDTi Grant To confirm expenditure of the
Certification Supported Internships Grant

Corporate Audit Actions Implementation

The Internal Audit team is responsible for tracking managers’ progress with
implementing internal audit actions.

As at 31 August 2024, the implementation rate (12-month rolling basis) for
actions from high risk findings is 82% (2024: 90%) and for medium risk findings is

89% (2024: 77%).

33 actions from high and medium risk findings identified from corporate audits
remained open. Of these, 28 actions (14 high risk and 14 medium risk) were not
fully implemented by their original due date and are, therefore, classed as
overdue. Overdue actions are shown by the solid coloured bars in the graph

below:




Page 10

Open Audit Actions at 31 August 2024

4
Not due
3 | B Overdue
0
HRD

People Resources HRD People Cross Chief Env & Com
Cutting Executive

N

=

Resources

High Risk Medium Risk

Details of the overdue corporate actions from high risk findings are provided in
Annex A.

Schools’ Actions Implementation

Schools Open Actions 31 August 2024
40
35
30
25
20
i g
S { i
10 § . \ \
> B33u8 ry
o ER |
Aug- Nov- Jan- Mar- Aug- Aug- Nov- Jan- Mar- Aug-
23 23 24 24 24 23 23 24 24 24
High Risk Medium Risk
B Overdue . Not Due

In line with our escalation policy, overdue schools’ actions are regularly notified
to the Director of Education.



Page 11

Counter Fraud

Counter Fraud Savings

The work routinely undertaken by the Counter Fraud Team generates savings
directly for the Council (for example, where a Right to Buy application is stopped)
as well as for Central Government where we administer schemes on their behalf,
such as those covering business grants and housing benefit payments.

These savings are classified as either:

e Detected: where fraud has taken place and an overpayment has been
identified.

e Prevented: where fraud would have occurred had the CFT not
intervened.

e Notional: estimated savings generated by housing recoveries.
As at 31 August 2024, the Counter Fraud team identified detected and
prevented savings of £953k as outlined in the table below. This includes notional

housing savings of £294k through the recovery of properties used improperly as
Council accommodation.

Detected and Prevented Fraud Savings to 31 August 2024 *

Fraud Type Detected | Prevented
(£) (£)
Council properties recovered (5 properties)** - 294,000
Temporary Accommodation property recovered - 2,500
(1 case)
Right to Buy (5 cases) - 592,800
Housing Benefit 51,049 -
Council Tax Reduction Scheme & Discounts 2,679 -
Secondary employment (2 cases) *** - 10,000
£53,728 £899,300
Total £953,028

* Includes overpayments identified or recovered, as well as potential future income and the
estimated value of losses prevented by the detection and interception of fraud and improvement
of controls.

** The Notional Value attributed to recovery of a Council property is the amount of £42k per
property as per the calculation published by the Tenancy Fraud Forum in April 2022; the figure
takes into account the average annual cost of providing temporary accommodation for a family
who could otherwise have occupied the recovered property, plus average investigation and legal



Page 12

costs. The Notional Value of a Temporary Accommodation recovery is based on the net annual
cost to the Council of acquiring a property for use as temporary accommodation.

*** Based on Cabinet Office estimate of £5,000 per secondary employment fraud case (NFI
London Fraud Hub pilot exercise)



ANNEX A: Overdue High Risk Actions

Audit Name

Audit

Finding

Agreed Action

Original
Due Date

Revised
Target Date

Housing Allocation of New Disrepair claims will be allocated to | 31-Jul-2024 | September 2024 31-Oct-2024
Repairs & Disrepairs lawyers in a timescale that allow them to A new Disrepair and Housing
Maintenance - | claims to comply with the 20-working day as per Management Team has been created
Disrepairs lawyers the Pre-Action Protocol for Housing in Legal Services to ensure that
Conditions Claims (England). disrepair cases are progressed
efficiently. All new disrepair cases are
dealt with by the team and are
allocated immediately. There are no
longer any delays in Legal Services.
Housing Performance We will implement a new process in 31-Jul-2024 | September 2024 31-Oct-2024
Repairs & Measures accordance with the timescales outlined
Maintenance - in the Pre-Action Protocol for Housing The SLA with Legal Services will not
Disrepairs Conditions Claims (England). We will set out KPIs as it is not necessary for
agree a Service Level Agreement with internal SLAs to set out KPIS in this
Legal Services. Key performance way. We will deal with all cases in
indicators which are in line with the Pre- accordance with the pre-action
Action Protocol for Housing Conditions protocol and any failures to do so can
Claims (England) will be set and be dealt with through the complaints
monitored. - We will monitor disrepair and escalation process set out in the
claims to ensure they are forwarded to SLA.
Legal Services in good time.
Housing Disrepair We will ensure that the standard 31-Jul-2024 | September 2024 31-Oct-2024
Repairs & Report Disrepair Report is fully completed to
Maintenance - provide an adequate audit trail from In progress.
Disrepairs tenants' complaints to resolving the

repair works.

€T abed



A. eeo A O

Financial
Management
of Bridgewood
House

Reconciliation
Processes

We will seek support from our Finance
Business Partner to ensure that:
appropriate financial controls are in
place. This will include, but is not limited
to:

a) Monthly reconciliations undertaken
between the bank statement and the
resident’s income and expenditure
records.

b) A summary of the individual resident
account balances that make up the
bank balance total.

¢) Monthly reconciliations of individual
income and expenditure records for
each resident against the supporting
documentation held.

d) All reconciliations independently
reviewed and approved by a second
member of staff to confirm their
accuracy.

30-Jun-
2022

September 2024
Progressed.

Documentation to be provided to
Internal Audit.

31- Aug- 2024

Direct
Payments

No formal
contract with
third-party
provider

The Health and Adult Social Care
(HASC) Management team will ensure
that a procurement exercise is carried
out and a formal contract is put in place
between Care in Finance and the
Council as soon as possible;

- A copy of the contract will be signed
by both parties and retained as part of
service records;

- The policies and procedures for direct
payments will be updated to include the
role of Care in Finance and any other
third party provider involved in the

31-Jul-2024

September 2024
This action is in progress and a direct
award option is being explored.

Revised target date 31 October 2024.

31-Oct-2024

T obed



Audit Name

Audit

Agreed Action

Original

Revised

Finding Due Date Target Date
administration and management of
direct payments.
Direct Insufficient The Health and Adult Social Care 30-Apr-24 September 2024 31-Oct-2024
Payments review of the (HASC) Management team will review
suitability of a the process around reviews of direct Revised target date 31 October 2024.
Direct Payment | payment suitability to ensure that:
- Systems to support ‘suitability’ reviews
are more automated such that annual
reviews are completed and evidenced;
- early stage reviews are carried out
after a reasonable period but before the
statutory six month deadline.
Direct Performance As part of the review process, we will 30-Apr-24 September 2024, 31-Oct-2024
Payments measure ensure that appropriate arrangements
arrangements | are in place to meet the agreed Revised target date 31 October 2024.
not in place performance measures and to report
and escalate non-compliance.
Direct No outstanding | An action plan will be put in place to 30-Apr-24 September 2024 31-Oct-2024
Payments direct payment | address outstanding reviews of direct
action place payment suitability that have not taken Revised target date 31 October 2024
place within the required timescales. agreed.
The HASC Management team will
monitor the action plan to ensure that
the backlog of reviews is cleared
promptly.
Home Care Incomplete As part of the quality review process, 30-Jun- September 2024 30-Nov-2024
Support records to the Home Care Management Team will | 2024 The new service specification has
support the ensure that: been drafted and is awaiting
annual quality - the financial monitoring tool is approval.
assurance completed in full;
checks - action plans are completed in full; Revised target date 30 November
- robust, independent review and 2024
monitoring of the financial monitoring

GT abed



Audit Name

Audit

Agreed Action

Original

Revised

Finding

tool is carried out and evidence of the
review is retained;

- an appropriate tracker is developed to
ensure that the implementation of action
points raised in the action plan is
recorded;

- where applicable, follow up visits are
carried out following quality assurance
checks;

- formal feedback is provided to
providers where relevant;

- the current monitoring tool is
enhanced to include cross references to
documentation provided by providers.

Due Date

Target Date

Home Care Naming As part of the quality review process, 30-Jun- September 2024 30-Nov-2024
Support convention the Home Care Management Team will | 2024 New templates and documentation

ensure that an agreed naming are in the process of being prepared.

convention is used and that documents

are clearly cross referenced to

supporting documentation. Revised target date 30 November

2024

Adult Social End to End We will re-engineer the end to end ASC | 31-May-24 | September 2024, Internal Audit TBC
Care Debt Process debt process including ensuring best Update requested
Collection use is made of existing IT systems. We

will ensure that all teams involved in the
ASC debt process are included in the
review and, as one of the outputs, roles
and responsibilities are clearly defined.

In order to do this, we will:
- engage with the Transformation team
- consider an invest to save approach

9T abed



Audit Name

Audit

Finding

Agreed Action

by employing a credit management
professional to lead this review

Original
Due Date

Revised
Target Date

Adult Social
Care Debt
Collection

End to End
Process

We will carry out a skills audit for key
staff involved in the ASC debt
management process and will address
any identified skills gaps.

We will provide regular training to all
teams involved in the end to end debt
process. This may include professional
training provided by Chartered Institute
of Credit Management or CIPFA.

31-May-24

September 2024, Internal Audit
Update requested

TBC

Adult Social
Care Debt
Collection

End to End
Process

We recommend a credit collection
‘centre of excellence’ is considered. This
would bring all debt processes

including, but not limited to, ASC, direct
payments, sundry debts, council tax and
business rates together overseen by a
credit professional.

31-May-24

September 2024, Internal Audit
Update requested

TBC

Education
Funding

Local Written
Procedures

Council specific written procedures for
the funding allocation will be put in
place.

31-Mar-24

September 2024
Procedures in draft.

TBC

LT abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

London Borough of Enfield

Report Title 2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Internal Audit Plan

Report to General Purposes Committee

Date of Meeting 23 October 2024

Directors Terry Osborne, Director of Law and Governance

Report Author Marion Cameron, Head of Internal Audit
Marion.Cameron@Enfield.gov.uk

Wards affected All

Classification Part | Public

Purpose of Report

In line with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the
Head of Internal Audit has a responsibility to establish risk based plans to determine the
priorities of the Internal Audit activity and to present these to the audit committee which,
at Enfield is the General Purposes Committee, for review and approval.

Recommendations

I.  Agree the 2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Internal Audit Plan

Report Author: Marion Cameron
Head of Internal Audit
Marion.Cameron@Enfield.gov.uk
Tel: 0208 132 1065

Appendices

Appendix A: 2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Draft Internal Audit Plan

Background Papers
None



Page 20

CE24-012

2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Draft Internal Audit Plan

Introduction

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the chief audit executive (who in
the London Borough of Enfield is the Head of Internal Audit) to determine the priorities of the
internal audit activity from a risk based plan which is consistent with the Council’s goals.

Internal audit work is planned to support the goals of the Council from an objective
assessment of the system of internal controls. The aim is to provide assurance to the
General Purposes Committee, Director of Law and Governance, the Assurance Board, and
other senior managers that an appropriate system of internal control is in place to mitigate
key risks that may impact on the achievement of the Council’s services and priorities.

Whilst it is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain a sound system of internal
control, and to prevent and detect fraud, bribery and corruption, the overall aim of internal
audit work is to seek out areas requiring improvement and to recommend solutions that will
enable the Council to better achieve its objectives. Therefore, the planning approach is
based on achieving coverage over a reasonable period of time, of the Council’s main risks
and core processes where there is a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control
weakness and fraud.

In previous years an annual plan was presented to the Committee. However this year,
adopting an agile approach, in March 2024 we presented a plan that set out our schedule of
work for the first 6 months of the financial year. The additional audits to be undertaken in the
remainder of the year are outlined below for approval.



Draft 2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Internal Audit Plan

Audit Name Audit Objective Corporate

Priority

CRO2 Financial

Audit
Priority
(1-3)

Cross Cutting | Temporary A review of the temporary accommodation 4 Q3 1 20
Accommodation process and linkages to financial management
Financial and forecasting.
Management Deferred from Q2
Environment |DEFRA Weekly Food | Grant Certification 1 Q3 1 3
& Collections Grant
Communities
Environment |DEFRA Weekly Food | Grant Certification 1 Q4 1 3
& Collections Grant
Communities
Resources VAT To review controls in place around the All Q3-Q4 2 20
computation and submission of VAT
information.
Schools Latymer All Saints To ensure that appropriate processes and 3 Q4 1 10
Primary School controls are in place and in accordance with
SFVS, Scheme for Financing Schools and the
Schools' Finance Manual.
Schools Forty Hill CE Primary | To ensure that appropriate processes and 3 Q3 1 10
School controls are in place and in accordance with
SFVS, Scheme for Financing Schools and the

T¢ abed



Draft 2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Internal Audit Plan

Audit Name

Audit Objective

Corporate

Priority

Audit
Priority
(1-3)

Schools' Finance Manual.
Schools Southbury Primary | To ensure that appropriate processes and 3 Q3 1 10
School controls are in place and in accordance with
SFVS, Scheme for Financing Schools and the
Schools' Finance Manual.
CRO3 Operations
People Community To ensure that appropriate stock control 2 Q4 1 20
Equipment Stock processes are in place.
Control Deferred from Q1.
Chief External Review of |In accordance with the Public Sector Internal All Q4 1 20
Executive’s Internal Audit Audit Standards, internal audit must be
reviewed every 5 years.
CRO04 Governance
Housing & Rent Standard To confirm that social housing rents are set in 4 Q4 1 20
Regeneration accordance with the Rent Standard 2023.
Housing & Service Charges To provide assurance that service charges 4 Q3 1 20
Regeneration raised are legitimate, clearly communicated
and fairly recovered.

Z¢ abed



Draft 2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Internal Audit Plan

Audit Name Audit Objective Corporate

Priority

CR08 Commercial

Audit
Priority
(1-3)

Environment | Parking Contract To review the current contract management 2 Q2 1 20
& Management processes and ensure these are in line with
Communities best practice.
Deferred from Q2.
Environment |Film Studio Contract |To review the contracting process and ensure 4 Q3 2 20
& it was in line with best practice.
Communities
CR11 Security
Resources Suppliers’ Data To assess the effectiveness of the steps the All Q3-Q4 1 20
Protection and Cyber | Council takes to limit the risk of data loss or
Security corruption through supplier networks.
CRO013 Reputational
People Supporting Families | To provide assurance for the Ministry for 2 Q3 1 3
Q3 Housing, Communities and Local Government
purposes that claims are legitimate.
People Supporting Families | To provide assurance for the Ministry for 2 Q4 1 3
Q4 Housing, Communities and Local Government
purposes that claims are legitimate.
People Domestic Homicide |Test the effectiveness of process/practice 2 Q4 1 20

gz obed



Draft 2024-25 (Q3 and Q4) Internal Audit Plan

Audit Name

Audit Objective

Corporate

Priority

Audit
Priority

Reviews

arrangements in place to assure that the
Council and partnerships are effectively
discharging their duties.

(1-3)

Resources

Mayor of the London
Borough of Enfield
Appeal Fund
Accounts 2023-24

Review to support the independent
examination of the Mayor of the London
Borough of Enfield Appeal Fund Accounts
2023-24 by the Executive Director Resources

Key to Corporate Priorities Abbreviations

\[o} Corporate Priorities

Clean and green places

Strong, healthy and safe communities

Thriving children and young people

More and better homes

O WIN|F

An economy that works for everyone

vz abed



Key to Audit Priority

1 Audit must be carried out despite any changes to the Council’s circumstances

2 If there are changes to the Council’s circumstances, this audit may only be cancelled in consultation with the audit
owner

3 If there are changes to the Council’s circumstances, this audit may be cancelled by the Internal Audit team without
reference to the audit owner

Gz abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27

Agenda Item 6

London Borough of Enfield

Report Title

2023-2024 Annual Data Protection Officer Report

Report to

General Purposes Committee

Date of Meeting

23 October 2024

Cabinet Member

Clir Ergin Erbil, Leader of the Council

Directors

Terry Osborne, Director of Law & Governance

Report Author

Andrea Kilby, Head of Legal Practice and Compliance

Wards affected:

All

Classification:

Part | Public

Purpose of Report

1. The Annual Data Protection Officer Report 2023-2024 (Annex 1)

summarises:

— The role of the Data Protection Officer (DPO)
— Council’'s Data Protection Update
— Schools’ Data Protection Update

2. Findings from the recent self-assessment.

Recommendations

I. The committee is recommended to note the work completed by the Data
Protection Officer during 2023-24, the findings of the recent self-
assessment and the planned work for 2024-25.




Page 28

Report Author:  Andrea Kilby, Head of Legal Practice and Compliance.
Appendices
Annex 1: Data Protection Officer Annual Report 2023-24

Background Papers
None



Page 29

ENFIELD%
Council

Data Protection

Officer Annual
Report 2023-24

October 2024



Page 30

Contents

Data Protection Officer Role

Council's Data Protection Update

e Data protection queries and advice

e Data protection breaches

e Corporate training

e Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO)

Self-Assessment Report

School Data Protection Update
e Data Protection queries and advice
e Data Protection breaches

Schools Self-Assessment Report



Page 31

Data Protection Officer Role

The UK GDPR requires all public authority data controllers to designate a Data
Protection Officer (DPO). The primary role of the Council’s DPO is to ensure that the
London Borough of Enfield processes the personal data of its staff, customers,
providers or any other individuals (also referred to as data subjects) in compliance
with the applicable data protection rules.

The role of the DPO is to:

monitor internal compliance with data protection legislation

to inform and advise on data protection obligations

to advise on and review Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIAS)

to provide risk-based advice to the Council and its schools

to raise awareness of data protection issues

to undertake and commission data protection audits

to be a contact point for “data subjects” (whether that be the public or
internal employees)

to be the point of contact for the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO)
To review contracts to ensure that they are data protection compliant

In fulfilling that role, a DPO must:

o act independently
o be an expert in data protection
J be adequately resourced to carry out the role

The designated DPO must be able to directly report to the highest management
level, must not receive instructions regarding the exercising of statutory tasks, and
shall not be penalised or dismissed for performing those tasks.

The Council must support the DPO in performing his tasks by providing resources
necessary to carry out those tasks and access to personal data and processing
operations.

Since June 2024, Sharlene Morris (Certified GDPR Data Protection Practitioner) has
been appointed as the designated DPO as required by Article 37 of the UK GDPR.



Page 32

Council's Data Protection Update

Data protection queries and advice

One of the key tasks of the DPO is to inform and advise the Council and maintained
schools about their obligations to comply with the UK GDPR and other data
protection laws. This is a requirement under Article 39 of the UK GDPR.

The DPO receives a wide range of queries about data protection matters. This
involves both providing advice, guidance and supporting various internal processes.
Advice is provided about intricate aspects of the law supporting the organisation in
applying data protection in practice. The DPO also assists with various internal data
protection practices such as the review of privacy documentation, monitoring of Data
Protection Impact Assessments and maintaining the Records of Processing
Activities.

During 2023-24 advice has been provided on the following issues, amongst others:

Data Sharing Agreements

Data Processing Agreements

The role of the Council as a Data Controller and its implications

The role of external agencies as Data Processors and its implications
Data protection due diligence in contracts

The application of the data protection principles

Understanding the lawful basis for processing personal data

Data Protection Impact Assessments

Data protection risks

Disapplication of the data protection provisions (exemptions)

Data protection breaches

Individual rights requests (including processing police disclosure requests)

Data Protection Breaches

The London Borough of Enfield in its capacity as data controller, is custodian of the
personal data of individuals to whom we provide support or services or who we
employ or otherwise work with.

The DPO is primarily responsible for ensuring that the Council appropriately handles
and manages their data. This not only enables the Council to effectively manage
records that contain both personal and non-personal data but also assists to prevent
security incidents, that may incur risks to the individuals (data subjects) and their
personal data, leading to a data breach.

A personal data breach can be broadly defined as a security incident that has
affected the confidentiality, integrity or availability of personal data. In short, there
will be a personal data breach whenever any personal data is accidentally or
deliberately lost, destroyed, corrupted or disclosed; if someone accesses the data or



Page 33

passes it on without proper authorisation; or if the data is made unavailable and this
unavailability has a significant negative effect on individuals.

It is important for the Council to continue to pay sufficient regard to data protection
and avoidance of data breaches, not only to ensure individuals’ rights are upheld but
also to avoid the potential imposition of enforcement action by the Information
Commissioner’s Office, (ICO); who potentially have the power to levy and enforce a
maximum financial penalty, of £17,500,000 or up to 4% of annual global turnover,
whichever is larger.

The Data protection team have implemented a robust Corporate and School data
protection process, that has been involves the reporting of security incidents to the
Council’s Digital Security Service and Data Protection Team. Upon receipt of the
notification, the incident will be investigated with the DPO advising if a personal data
breach has occurred and, if so, promptly taking steps to address it, which could
include reporting to the ICO, affected data subjects or any other relevant senior lead
or regulatory body, when necessary.

The obligation to notify the Information Commissioners Office arises when a breach
is deemed to be a ‘high risk’ to the rights and freedoms of affected individuals,
causing potential harm or detriment to them. Breaches which need to be reported
must be reported without undue delay, but not later than 72 hours after becoming
aware of it.

The obligation to notify the affected data subject only arises when the breach is
deemed to be a ‘high risk’ to the rights and freedoms of affected individuals. The
affected data subject(s) should be informed without undue delay.

The DPO investigated a total of 106 personal data breaches between April 2023 and

March 2024, this was an increase of 7 breaches in the year 2022-23. Below is a
breakdown of all breaches by department.

PERSONAL DATA BREACHES 2023-24

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24

=

H People M Environment and Communities ™ Resources M Chief Executive Office ™ Housing, Regeneration and Development



Page 34

Apr May  Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total
23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 24 24

People 2 3 1 3 4 3 5 4 3 2 4 1 35
Environ and 2 2 5 4 2 3 6 0 2 1 2 1 30
Communities

Resources 1 4 3 0 0 13
Chief 0 1 0 2 4 0 2 2 3 18
Executive

Housing, 2 1] 1 0 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 7
Regen and

Development

Currently the DPO has investigated a total of 62 personal data breaches between
April 2024 and September 2025. Of those 62 personal data breaches a total of 8
have been reported to the ICO.

Of the reported data breaches 43% have occurred within the People Department.
Whilst this figure is higher in comparison to the other Departments, the figure is
proportionate as the Department processes personal data at a larger scale in
comparison to the other departments.

TOTAL BREACHES BY DEPARTMENT 2023-2024

m Chief Executive W People W Resources M Environment and Communities W Housing, Regneration and Development

These breaches can be divided into two broad categories:

. the unauthorised disclosure of data
. the loss of Council devices




Page 35

GRAND TOTAL BY BREACH TYPE 2023-2024

Loss of Council
Devices
36%

The unauthorised disclosure
of data
64%

The majority (64%) of the breaches have occurred due to the unauthorised
disclosure of data. Of the 106 breaches reported 14 were considered to have met
the threshold for reporting to the ICO. All incidents reported were thoroughly
investigated and mitigation measures and longer-term actions to prevent
reoccurrence were recommended by the DPO to the services.

It should be noted that there was an increase in the number of lost/stolen devices,
59 in 2023-24 compared to 38 in 2022-23. Investigation shows that during the year
2023-2024 there was a Digital Services project to recall old phones, which resulted
in colleagues who had not used devices for an extended period of time and who
could no longer find them reporting this in the lost/stolen Council device category.

Corporate Training

The training of staff and key stakeholders on their data protection responsibilities is
one of the most important parts of any data protection compliance project or data
protection structure in an organisation.

The mandatory e-learning training module (iLearn) for all staff on data protection
was reviewed and updated during 2022-23. The data protection module has been
amalgamated with the freedom of information and cyber security modules and
renamed to Information Rights and Cyber Security. Between April 2023 and March
2024 all 233 new starters completed this training as part of their mandatory training
and 823 colleagues completed the course as their required refresher training.

Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO)

The DPO cooperates with the supervisory authority (ICO) with regards to complaints
received about the Council’s data protection practises. Between April 2023 and
March 2024, the ICO published 2 decision notices. Decisions notices are the
investigative outcomes following a complaint received by the ICO regarding our
practices. Both decision notices related to complaints about information provided
under FOI requests (processed under the Freedom of Information Act 2000) and both
required no further action by the Council.



Page 36

Self-Assessment Report

In April 2024 revised organisation reporting arrangements were implemented for the
Data Protection Officer (DPO) and the Data Protection Advisor, as both posts
moved from the Audit Team to the Legal Team, reporting to the Head of Legal
Practice and Compliance and, by dotted line, to the Director and Law and
Governance. This move allowed for continued independence of the DPO function
whilst providing the ability to increase the data protection presence and resilience
within the organisation through access to additional clerical support meaning that
the DPO could focus on specific data protection tasks.

We have taken this opportunity to begin to conduct a full and thorough review of
data protection within the organisation, relating to systems, processes, and culture.
This review is being conducted against the ICO accountability framework, which
allows us to self-assess across ten areas of review, namely:

1. Leadership and oversight

2. Policies and procedures

3. Training and awareness

4. Individual rights

5. Transparency

6. Record Of Processing Activity (ROPA) and lawful basis
7. Contracts and data sharing

8. Risks and Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIAS)
9. Records Management

10.Breach response and monitor

We have chosen to focus initially on 4 areas which we believe will strengthen the
current data protection processes and service provision. These areas are:

e 3. Training and Awareness

e 6. ROPA and lawful basis

e 8. Risks and DPIAs

e 10. Breach Responses and Monitor

Our progress on review and actions are set out below.

3. Training and Awareness

Training is mandatory and tracked, however it is generic to the whole organisation.
For this reason, during 2024-25 we will once again review the mandatory training to
ensure that it remains relevant and fresh, both for new starters and to those
completing refresher training. For services, such as People Services, that handle
large volumes of personal data we will review if additional mandatory training should
be in place. Our aim is to have a proactive training programme that evolves across
the course of the year to reflect events that take place and enable sharing best
practice to teams across the Council based on experiences from others. We are



Page 37

preparing a launch plan for replacement of the GDPR workbook which will cover
training on completion of the DPIA, the legal requirements of a ROPA, IAR and
retention schedule documentation. We will use available means of communication to
raise awareness across the council of both exiting policies and procedures, for
example how to report a data breach and new concepts such as the DPIA through
channels such as Staff Matters emails and Intranet splash pages.

Where breaches occur the DPO within the investigation considers what training
could prevent a repeat occurrence and where appropriate will schedule training as a
future preventative measure before the breach investigation is signed off as
completed. Since implementing this approach in September 2024, the DPO has
delivered 3 training sessions.

6. Risks and DBIA and 8. ROPA and lawful basis

In the 2022-23 Data Protection Annual Report it was noted that since the inception
of the General Data Protection Regulation in 2018, the Council has utilised a ‘GDPR
workbook’ for two main purposes. The workbook, in an excel format, serves as a
data register and links to the Record of Processing Activities (ROPA).

It is a legal requirement to maintain a record of processing activities. There are
several specified areas where records must be maintained, such as the purposes of
processing personal data, data sharing and retention.

The second purpose of the workbook is that it carries out a data protection impact
assessment (DPIA). A DPIA is a process which helps identify and minimise the data
protection risks of a project. It is required for processing that is likely to result in a
high risk to individuals.

The previous format required all forms of new data processing activities to be
recorded on the workbook whilst at the same time carrying out a DPIA. However, the
requirement for a DPIA legally only exists in certain scenarios. In addition, the
previous format does not allow for a pre-assessment for DPIAs of proposed projects,
processing activity, technology prior to completion of a full DPIA form.

A new DPIA template was created and piloted in 2022-23 and following feedback
amended in June 2024. This template includes a pre-assessment phase which
allows business areas to assess whether a full DPIA is needed.

To replace the GDPR workbook in full alongside the DPIA we recommend and will
implement the usage of the following documents in a stand-alone format;

e Record of Processing Activities (ROPA)

e Information Asset Register (IAR)

e Retention Schedule.

Having created the template formats for these requirements a project will be
undertaken in the second half of the financial year 2024-25 to move the data from the
existing workbooks to the new templates and will be launched in November 2024.



Page 38

10.Breach Responses and Monitor

Following self-assessment against the accountability framework regards breach
responses and monitor the following actions have been taken.

e The data breach reporting procedures have been updated with clear flow charts
of the process. This has been agreed and shared with the relevant colleagues in
Digital Services who support in directing data breaches logged through the Service
Now system.

e The Data Breach Reporting Form has been updated to ensure that those
reporting are prompted to include all the necessary information regards
circumstances of the breach, such as,

— How it was identified,

— How it occurred,

— What mitigating actions have been implemented and

— What preventative measure could be put in place to prevent reoccurrence.

e The Data Protection Team investigates each breach in full and makes an
assessment about whether the relevant threshold has been met to report to the ICO.
The new form contains the outcome of that decision and reasonings.

e Tracking of data breaches has been updated and now includes details of
remedial actions and preventative measures in place with who is accountable.
Timescales are set for follow up actions from the DPO to review those measures
and assess if they have been implemented and are delivering improved data
protection measures within the service area.



w

N

[any

o

Page 39

Schools Data Protection Update

The Council provides a Data Protection Officer service to all its maintained schools
via a de-delegated budget. Since June 2024 the DPO for the Council, Sharlene
Morris, has filled this role. All maintained schools have agreed to sign up to the
Council’'s DPO service for 2024-2025.

The DPO received a significant number of queries from senior stakeholders
(Headteachers, Deputy Headteachers, Directors, and School Business Managers)
within schools on a wide range of data protection issues. Most frequent queries are
related to policies and data sharing. A common query received by the DPO is on the
use of exemptions in relation to data subject requests. Advice has been provided
during the year on this intricate part of the law and there is planned training for the
2024-25 academic year.

Data Protection Breaches

As part of the provision of the DPO service all schools report data breaches to the
DPO and the same investigation process is undertaken for each breach.

Between April 2023 and March 2024 there were 22 school data breaches reported
to the DPO. We are not aware of any incidents reported to the ICO. Below is a
breakdown of the reports by month.

School Data Breaches

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23  Jul-23  Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24



Page 40

Schools Self-Assessment Report

In line with the approach for the Council the change of Data Protection Officer
personnel is an opportunity to review the current services offered to schools. As part
of the review, a UK GDPR checklist has been created for schools to complete their
own self-assessment of the status of compliance assessing processes, procedures,
security arrangements and culture. This will be launched in September 2024.These
checklists will be returned to the DPO and will aid a desktop assessment of data
protection procedures within school and inform required training for the academic year
2024-25.

In relation to the DPO completing the ICO self-assessment for the Council process
and procedures where the outcome of the assessment identifies measures that would
also prove beneficial for schools these measures will be introduced as part of the
service offered by the DPO offered to schools. Example of this to date are listed
below.

3. Training and Awareness

Upskilling our schools to be able to deal with most of the data protection and GDPR
gueries they have is a key strategy for the DPO in the academic year 2024-25. The
UK GDPR checklist will identify skills gap which will inform further sessions to add to
the already outlined schools training and awareness plan. Part of the awareness plan
is to forge closer links with the School Business Managers, contributing regularly to
the weekly update bulletins, making better use of the DPO Hub to share resources
such as polices and templates and attendance at the School Business Manager
forums.

6.0 Risks and DPIA and 8.0 ROPA and lawful basis

As per the identified action for the Council we will introduce the new Data Protection
Impact Assessments (DPIA) and replace the GDPR workbooks with the standalone
Record of Processing Activities (ROPA), Information Asset Register (IAR) and
Retention Schedule. Having created the template formats for these requirements a
project will launch in November 2024 to move the data from the existing workbooks to
the new templates.

10. Breach Response and Monitor

e The Data Breach Reporting Form has been updated to ensure that those
reporting are prompted to include all the necessary information regards
circumstances of the breach, such as,

-How it was identified,

-How it occurred,

-What mitigating actions have been implemented and

-What preventative measure could be put in place to prevent reoccurrence.



Page 41

e The Data Protection Team investigates each breach in full and makes an
assessment if the relevant threshold has been met to report to the ICO. The new
form contains the outcome of that decision and reasonings.

e Tracking of data breaches has been updated and now includes details of
remedial actions and preventative measures in place for those who assume
accountability. Timescales are set for follow-up from the DPO to review those
measures and assess if they have been implemented and are delivering improved
data protection measures within the service area.



This page is intentionally left blank



° Grant Thornton

London Borough of Enfield and Pension
Fund

Audit progress report and sector updates

23 October 2024




Commercial in Confidence

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 03
Progress at October 2024 O4
Audit deliverables 09
Sector update 10

vt abed

The contents of this report relate only to
the matters which have come to our
attention, which we believe need to be
reported to you as part of our audit
process. It is not a comprehensive
record of all the relevant matters, which
may be subject to change, and, in
particular, we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all the
risks which may affect the Council or
all weaknesses in your internal controls.
This report has been prepared solely for
your benefit and should not be quoted
in whole or in part without our prior
written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned
to any third party acting or refraining
from acting on the basis of the content
of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 2



Commercial in Confidence

Introduction

Your key Grant Thornton This paper provides the General Purposes Committee (GPC]J with a report on progress in
team members are: delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.
Matt Dean . . . L . .

The paper also includes a series of sector updates in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee
Key Audit Partner

may wish to consider.
T: +44t (0)20 7728 3181

E: matt.dean@uk.gt.com Members of the General Purposes Committee (GPC] can find further useful material on our website, where we

have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications:
Ajay Jha
Senior Manager - Council
T: +44t (0)20 7865 2276

E: ajay.kjha@uk.gt.com

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/public-sector/local-government/

G abed

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton
to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Key Audit
Partner or Engagement Manager.

Jayanti Gupta
Manager - Pension Fund

T: +44 (0)20 7865 2510
E: jayanti.gupta@uk.gt.com

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 3


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/public-sector/local-government/

Commercial in Confidence

Progress at October 2024

Financial Statements Audit

We are pleased to present our update report to the General Purposes Committee (GPC). This report is an integral part of our communication strategy,
which is designed to ensure effective two-way communication throughout the audit process with those charged with governance.

It summarises, the progress made since we started our risk assessment and planning and areas requiring further discussion and/or the attention of the GPC
Committee.

The Council has not been subject to a detailed and focus audit visit for several years, and combined with the regulatory environment in which auditors are
now working, it was expected that the audit for 2023/2% would be a learning experience for both sides, and to date the Council has engaged well and been
responsive to the queries we have raised from the procedures performed to date.

Our audit fieldwork started in July 2024 with the aim of substantially completing our audit work by the end of September 2024. Whilst progress has been
made, there are elements of the work which are currently ongoing due to challenges faced throughout the audit. Our key outstanding elements are set out
on pages 5 to 8.

During the audit process, we encountered challenges that necessitated additional work to address certain areas of the Accounts, such as the need to
increase in our audit work on journals due to issues identified in the control environment, delays in receiving appropriate transactions listing to support
several key areas of the Accounts. Furthermore, we have faced challenges in receiving sufficient audit evidence for various key audit areas such as creditors,
grants in advance, collection fund reliefs, dwelling rent income, operating expenditure and schools expenditure. As a result, this is likely to have fee
implications despite the increases in the Scale Fee. We are currently discussing these proposals with Management and will share these with the Committee
once agreed. As in previous years, these proposed increases have to be reviewed and approved by Public Sector Audit Appointments before they can be
charged to ensure they are reasonable and proportionate.

9t abed

As this is the first year of the audit and considering the previous years being backstopped, it's important to note that an additional layer of review will be
conducted by our internal Engagement Quality Control team on the audit work. Thank you for your understanding and cooperation as we work to ensure
the highest standards of quality and accuracy in our audit processes

Our Audit Findings Report will be presented to the next General Purposes Committee (GPC) in January 2025, which will summarise results of our audit of the
financial statements and significant matters.

Value for Money

The majority of our Value for Money work is now complete, and we have produced our draft Auditor’s Annual Report, which is included as a separate item on
this Committee’s Agenda.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 4



Commercial in Confidence

Progress at October 2024 (cont.)

Council Financial Statements - detailed update

As mentioned on the previous page, there are areas of our work which are still ongoing, and in summary these are as follows:
Areas outstanding with the Council (details on sample testing on the following page)

* Cash and investments

* Income and expenditure testing including HRA

* Debtors and creditors testing

* Detailed testing of the accounting relating to the Meridian Water development

* Responses to the queries raised from our Quality Review of the Accounts

Areas outstanding with the Council’s Expert, Sanderson Weatherill

/v abed

* Responses to queries relating to our testing of the Council’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Areas currently being tested by the Audit Team
* review of the defined benefits liability, group accounts and IFRS 16 completeness check
* senior engagement lead/manager quality review of the audit work
* receipt of management representation letter; and

* review of the final set of financial statements, including confirming the other information published together with the financial
statements remains consistent post all audit adjustments.

*Please note that the above outstanding sections do not include sections which are pending manager/engagement lead review which may
generate further queries. Further to this, the samples under process by the audit team may identify further queries.

We will continue to progress some elements of this work in October, but we have audits to commence in October and thus will return to the
Council in January to progress things further, ahead of the backstop deadline of the end of February 2025.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 5



Commercial in Confidence

Progress at October 2024 (cont.)

Financial Statements - Key outstanding elements

Total samples | Awaiting Evidence |Auditor Processing | GT Queried % Complete:

PPE - Additions 78%
PPE - Disposals 10 0 0 1 9 90%
Grant Income 29 0 0 8 21 72%
Bank Payments 22 0 0 9 13 59%
S
Bank Receipts 24 0 0 1 23 6% S
N
. . o
Grants Received in 9 0 9 0 0 0%
Advance
Capital Commitments 8 0 0 8 0 0%
Operating Leases 1 0 1 0 0 0%
HRA income 17 0 17 0 0 0%
Assets under 5 0 5 0 0 0%

Construction

Council Tax Reliefs 25 25 0 0 0 0%

Business Rates Reliefs 25 14 11 0 0 0%

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 6



Commercial in Confidence

Progress at October 2024 (cont.)

Financial Statements - Key outstanding elements

Total samples | Awaiting Evidence |Auditor Processing | GT Queried % Complete:

PPE - OLB & HRA and IP

0

Valuations 0%
Journals 55 0 8 5 42 76%
Other service 78 18 0 37 23 29%
expenditure
Fees and Charges 30 0 5 50 8 579 5
Income o

. Q
Er.nplogee Changes in 3 0 0 L L 50% i
Circumstances ©
Creditors 18 18 0 0 0 0%
Debtors (Short Term) 19 6 1 12 0 0%
Debtors (Long Term) 7 7 0 0 0 0%
Payroll Testing - Council 20 0 0 : 19 95%
Staff
Payroll Testing - Schools 20 0 0 2 18 90%
Exit Packages 5 5 0 0 0 0%
Non direct employee 19 0 1 0 7 37%

costs

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 7



Commercial in Confidence

Progress at October 2024 - Pension Fund

Financial Statements Audit - Pension Fund

As of September 2024, our work on the audit of the 2023-24 financial statements is ongoing and there are no matters of which we are aware that would
require modification of our audit opinion on the financial statements of the Enfield Pension Fund. Our detailed findings will be included in our 2023-24 Audit
Findings Report to be presented to the General Purposes Committee in January.

As of the report writing, our ongoing work has been affected by delays in obtaining essential evidence for several sections of the financial statements. Our
original target was to finalise our work by the end of September 2024; However, we have planned to revisit this position in January 2025 for completion of
the remaining outstanding work. Delays have been experienced in obtaining confirmations from the investment fund managers, receiving initial listing to
select the samples, collating appropriate evidence for the samples selected, and obtaining follow-up responses to queries raised. The outstanding items are
summarised below:

Await information from management:
* Level 2 investments - 7 Sample outstanding in total, queries outstanding with Fund managers and team-high priority; -

* Level 3 investments - queries outstanding with 4+ Fund Managers;

0S abed

* Responses to points raised by the Audit Manager and Key Audit Partner’s review of accounts;

* Members’ Data Listing requested for Triennial Valuation work

Areas subject to the audit team completing the work:
* Financial Instruments
* Derivatives

* Benefits Payable Testing - there are 31 items currently being processed by the audit team

*Please note that the above outstanding sections do not include sections which are pending manager/engagement lead review which may generate further
queries. Further to this, the samples under process by the audit team may identify further queries.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 8



Audit Deliverables

Below are some of the audit deliverables planned for 2023-24

Commercial in Confidence

2023/24 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Audit Plan - for Council and Pension Fund June 2024 Complete

We are required to issue detailed audit plans to the General Purposes Committee (GPC] setting out

our proposed approach in order to give an opinion on the Council and Pension Fund’s 2023/24

financial statements.

Audit Findings Report - for Council and Pension Fund January 2025 Not yet due

The Audit Findings Reports will be reported to the General Purposes Committee

Auditors Report - for Council and Pension Fund February 2025 Not yet due -
These include the opinion on the relevant financial statements. %
Auditor’s Annual Report - for Council only September 2024  Complete - on i
This report communicates the key outputs of the audit, including our commentary on the Council's th? Agen?lo for

value for money arrangements. this meeting

Pension Fund Annual Report Auditor’s Consistency Report November 2024 Not yet due

This includes our opinion that the 2023-24 Enfield Pension Fund financial statements within the Pension
Fund Annual Report are consistent, in all material aspects, with those within the audited Council’s
Financial Statements.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 9



Sector update



Commercial in Confidence

Ending the local audit backlog

A plan for restoring timely assurance to the Local Government audit system was Key messages from the Minister are that:

gg:hOjS;:egobz%the Minister of State for Local Government and English Devolution on For financial years up to and including 2022/23, if financial audits are not complete
J ’ by 13 December 2024, disclaimed or modified opinions will be required. The Minister

When parliamentary time permits, secondary legislation is going to be used to recognises that in most cases these may remain in place for up to two years.

amend the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) and to introduce five new

The Minister’s statement is, however, “crystal clear” that where there are modified
backstop dates:

opinions for financial accounts, auditors’ other statutory duties - including to report
on Value for Money (VfM] arrangements, to make statutory recommendations, and
to issue Public Interest Reports, will still be a high priority.

)
QD
There will be some limited grounds for exemption to meeting the audited accounts Q
. S . s @
backstop dates: Where auditors are considering a material objection; where o
) ) ) ) recourse to the court could be required; or from 2023/24, where the auditor is not w
1. Financial years up-to-and-including 2022/23: 13 December 202 yet satisfied with the body’s Value for Money arrangements. Nevertheless, Councils
2. Financial year 2023/24: 28 February 2025; need to be aware that the Government intends to publish a list of bodies and
auditors that do not have an exemption and yet still do not meet the proposed new
3. Financial year 2024/25: 27 February 2026; dates.
4. Financial year 2025/26: 31 January 2027; To help Councils comply with these arrangements, for financial years 2024/25 to
5. Financial year 2026/27: 30 November 2027; and 2027/28, the Minister states that the deadline for filing Category 1 ‘draft’
' ' (unaudited) accounts will be extended from 31 May to 30 June (allowing higher
6. Financial year 2027/28: 30 November 2028. quality draft accounts); and there will be no routine inspections of local audits (by

the Financial Reporting Council or by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales) for financial years up to and including 2022/23, unless there is

a clear case in the public interest to do so.
Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton Partner and Head of Local Government, has

had an article published in The MJ, where he reviews the reasons for the Once implemented, the hope is that the new arrangements will help to restore the
delays in audited accounts and considers what is required for a long-term robust assurance needed to underpin good governance and accountability. The
solution: legislation will come into law on October 19, 2024.

https://www.them].co.uk/beyond-the-local-audit-backstop

For the full statement, see Written statements - Written questions, answers and
statements - UK Parliament.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 11


https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46
https://www.themj.co.uk/beyond-the-local-audit-backstop

Commercial in Confidence

Lessons from recent Auditors’ Annual
Reports

In July 2024, Grant Thornton shared findings from a review of just under 100 recent To help Councils with their challenge, Grant Thornton’s Lessons report summarised
Auditors’ Annual Reports (AARs), covering around 30% of all Councils in England. suggestions for improvement into a single checklist for success.
W|th around 730 different areas for |m|c.>rover'nen't identified, the AARs highlighted Key questions for Audit Committees from the checklist for success:
five key areas where local government is facing increased challenge:

* External audit recommendations - are we up to date with monitoring progress

1. Transformation and saving plans; and implementation and prior year recommendations?
The Dedicated Schools Grant; * Savings and reserves - is our medium-term financial plan up to date?
Financial governance and internal control; * Special educational needs and disability - are we on track with arrangements to

close any deficit?
Performance management and procurement; and

*  Workforce - do we have an up-to-date strategy?

o F W N

The Housing Revenue Account.

¥G abed

* The Housing Revenue Account — when did we last review the strategy and
arrangements for governance and internal control?

Even before the July 2024 general election, local authorities were key to delivering
nationally important policies. Under the new government, the sector looks likely to
play an even more pivotal role as, for example, proposed reforms to planning and
ity housebuilding get underway. Audit Committees can use the Grant Thornton

e R checklist for success to assess how ready their organisation is to take advantage of
Bt the new opportunities likely to open-up and to step into the new, higher profile role
they are likely to be invited to play.

< For a full copy of the report, see Lessons from recent auditor’s annual reports
(grantthornton.co.uk)

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 12


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2024/report---lessons-from-recent-auditors-annual-reports-v.08.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2024/report---lessons-from-recent-auditors-annual-reports-v.08.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Code of practice on good governance

In June 2024, SOLACE, CIPFA and Lawyers in Local Government (LLG] jointly
published a new code of practice on good governance. The code provides advice
and sets expectations for the three highest profile statutory roles in local
government - the Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer, and the
Monitoring Officer. The aim of the code is to enable these three high profile officers
to effectively work together in a ‘Golden Triangle’ - to best advise members,
implement decisions, and help achieve good outcomes.

This is a powerful publication because it is the first in which SOLACE, CIPFA and
LLG have spoken as one voice. Whilst the Seven Principles of Public Life, or Nolan
Principles, apply to all public office holders (and indeed all those in other sectors
delivering public services), expectations of the three most senior statutory officers in
Councils go further. The fact that this guide is targeted specifically at their three
roles is therefore more than welcome.

The new code of practice sets out seven standards the “Golden Triangle” officers
should comply with, alongside a series of more direct requirements they should
adhere to. The code provides guidance to the three officers concerned; can be used
to explain their roles more clearly to others; and provides context for conversations
about the roles, the requirements, and actions to be undertaken.

Questions Audit Committees can use the code to ask themselves surround: Do we
understand what our most senior officers do? And do they understand the
standards they are bound by?

For a full copy of the Code of Practice, see Code of Practice on Good
Governance for Statutory Officers June 2024.pdf (solace.org.uk)

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

The seven standards of the Golden Triangle are:

Op 00

@@ @ ® @@ @

Understand Governance

Roles and responsibilities

Act Wisely

A duty of enquiry & the exercise of statutory functions

Lead Ethically
The Seven Principles of Public Life

Act Effectively

Robustness in working arrangements

Resource the Roles

Get the tools to do the job

Build Resilience

Deputies and development

Deliver sound decision making

The outcome of good governance

London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024

GG abed


https://solace.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Code-of-Practice-on-Good-Governance-for-Statutory-Officers-June-2024.pdf
https://solace.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Code-of-Practice-on-Good-Governance-for-Statutory-Officers-June-2024.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Annual review of local government
complaints

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s latest Annual Review of Locall
Government Complaints was published in July 2024.

The review shows that nationally, there has been an increase in the number of
complaints received, an increase in the number of complaints upheld, and ongoing
issues within special educational needs; housing; and adult social care services.

The review argues that complaints can be seen as a valuable source of information,
and it encourages councils to use complaints information to identify early warning
signs of service failure. It includes best practice resources to help councils take
valuable learning from complaints, including a performance map and data tables.

Readers are advised by the review to consider, using the interactive data for those
councils they are interested in:

96 abed

- Uphold rates;
- Suitable remedy rates;
- Compliance rates; and

- The nature of service improvement recommendations made.

Councils should bear in mind that since April 2024 new overview and scrutiny:
statutory guidance for councils, combined authorities and combined
county authorities recommends that scrutingy committee work programmes are
informed by the reports and recommendations issued by the Ombudsman.

For a full copy of the Ombudsman’s Annual Review, see Annual Review of
Local Government Complaints.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 i


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities
https://files.localgov.co.uk/lgo_638574241294533121.pdf
https://files.localgov.co.uk/lgo_638574241294533121.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Homelessness and housing targets

The National Audit Office (NAO) published a report in July 2024 on the effectiveness

of government in tackling homelessness.

The report noted that homelessness is now at the highest level since comparable £2‘ I.I.I.I.bn

data collection began in the early 2000s, despite local government spending on . )
homelessness services having more than doubled since 2010/11. The report also Spent by local government in 2022/23 on homelessness services

noted that a co-ordinated government response is difficult because there was, at

the time of writing the report, no strategy or published target for statutory

homelessness; and, again at the time of writing the report, the Department for

Levelling Up, Housing and Communities had limited power to influence other 60 0/
(1]

government departments’ decisions on cross-cutting matters that can affect g
homelessness services. =
The National Audit Office argued that homelessness funding is fragmented and Proportion of |°‘?°‘| ORI 2022/?3 total gross expenditure on housing o
generally short-term, inhibiting homelessness prevention work and limiting services (excluding that relating to their own housing] that was used to deal

investment in good-quality temporary accommodation or other forms of housing. with homelessness, up from 25% in 2010/11

New housebuilding targets announced by the new government on 30t July may

help, but consistent funding and a move away from short termism and a clear

strategy are also going to be essential levers that national and local government

are now going to have to develop. 1 5

For a copy of the National Audit Office report, see the effectiveness of Cross-government boards that have a remit relevant to homelessness
government in tackling homelessness (nao.org.uk].

For the government’s new housebuilding targets, see Housing targets @
increased to get Britain building again - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) NAO ﬁ

National Audit Office

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 15


https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/effectiveness-of-government-in-tackling-homelessness.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/effectiveness-of-government-in-tackling-homelessness.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/housing-targets-increased-to-get-britain-building-again
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/housing-targets-increased-to-get-britain-building-again

Commercial in Confidence

New approaches needed to key

educational issues

Two recent reports highlighted weaknesses in the educational system that councils
have to work with. Both include recommendations for the new government, intended
to give disadvantaged children and children with special educational needs and
disabilities better outcomes for the money spent.

On 239 July 2024, the National Audit Office (NAO) published its report on
Improving educational outcomes for disadvantaged children
(nao.org.uk], noting that disadvantaged children include those who are currently,
or have previously been, looked after by the council.

The report highlighted that the government spends an estimated £9.2 billion on
supporting disadvantaged children and narrowing the attainment gap between
them and their peers, but that disadvantaged children still perform less well than
their peers across all areas and across all school phases.

Two days later, on 25% July, the ISOS Partnership published an independent
report commissioned by the County Councils network and the Local
Government Association showing that educational attainment amongst
children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) has not improved
since 2014, despite councils being projected to spend £12 billion on these services by
2026 (compared to £} billion a decade ago).

s

NACE ISOS

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

National Audit Office p artnersh i p

Going forward for SEND, local government could play a pivotal role in delivering
any changes of policy. It is important for members to be aware of the changes that
could happen in future. The ISOS partnership recommends that the new
government:

* Invests in building capacity in mainstream schools to meet children’s needs, such
as therapists, educational psychologists, and wider inclusion support, helping to
reduce the reliance on specialist school places;

* Resets the vision and guiding principles of the SEND system towards inclusion,
prevention and earlier support which would cater for young people who do not
have a statutory plan, with such plans reserved for the most complex cases;

*  Provides a new ‘national framework’ for SEND;

+ Establishes ‘Local Inclusion Partnerships’ to enable more effective assessments,
commissioning and collaboration between councils, schools and health; and

* Creates a National Institute for Inclusive Education as an independent arbiter
around inclusive education and support for children and young people with
additional needs.

Local 48

Government

Association

CCN

COUNTY COUNCILS NETWORK

London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 16

8G abed


https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/improving-educational-outcomes-for-disadvantaged-children-1.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/improving-educational-outcomes-for-disadvantaged-children-1.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5ce55a5ad4c5c500016855ee/t/669fcedacd1a1f608546f52b/1721749338168/SEND+report.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5ce55a5ad4c5c500016855ee/t/669fcedacd1a1f608546f52b/1721749338168/SEND+report.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5ce55a5ad4c5c500016855ee/t/669fcedacd1a1f608546f52b/1721749338168/SEND+report.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Demand management for social care

In July 2024 CIPFA published a guide to managing rising demand in adult and
children’s social care, drawing on lessons from nineteen different English councils.

Having highlighted that requests for adult social care and the number of children in
need are both rising, CIPFA shared examples of good practice around:

* Adult Social Care - Market management; transitions; transformation and
innovation; and

+ Childrens’ Social Care - Market management; transitions; transformation and
innovation.

Rise in the demand for adult social care support for new clients:

2.050.000

2.000.000

1.950.000 ,—_—\///"
1.900.000 /
1.850.000 —

1.800.000

1,750,000

1.700.000

2016/17 2017/18 201819 2019920 2020421 20222 2022/23

Rise in the number of children in need:

— = pr=
395:000 ~ / \ /

385.000
380.000 },
375.000
370.000
365.000
360.000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

The report shows the importance of strong corporate and leadership buy-in; utilising
funding and resources from diverse sources; focusing on improving outcomes;
making use of monitoring, forecasting and benchmarking tools; and investing in
preventative action. However, CIPFA also highlighted the specific contributions that
innovative finance professionals can make:

* Financial oversight, analysis and management;

* Grant and resource management;

* Compliance, reporting and risk management;

» Evidence-based decision making and communication;
* Monitoring, forecasting and benchmarking;

6G abed

» Strategic thinking;

* Funding maximisation;

» Business case and scenario planning;
* Sustainable commissioning; and

* Data utilisation, monitoring and evaluation.

The examples of proactive work by professionals from across the nineteen councils
show how co-operation can make a real difference. For more details on the report,
see_ Managing rising demand in adult and childrens social care

(cipfa.org].

London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 17


https://www.cipfa.org/services/building-sustainable-social-care/managing-rising-demand-in-adult-and-childrens-social-care#:~:text=Requests%20for%20adult%20social%20care%20support%20from%20new,in%202022%2F23%3A%20an%20increase%20of%2026%25%20since%202018%2F19.
https://www.cipfa.org/services/building-sustainable-social-care/managing-rising-demand-in-adult-and-childrens-social-care#:~:text=Requests%20for%20adult%20social%20care%20support%20from%20new,in%202022%2F23%3A%20an%20increase%20of%2026%25%20since%202018%2F19.

Commercial in Confidence

The social landlord role - what can councils

do better?

The Housing Ombudsman published its latest Insight Report in July 2024: Insight
report - Issue 17 (housing-ombudsman.org.uk])

The report focused on London - noting that 47% of the cases determined by the
Ombudsman in 2023/2% were from residents living in a London postcode, despite the
fact that just under one in six homes in the Ombudsman’s membership is located
within Greater London.

No other region of England has such a wide gap between the proportion of social
housing and complaints, but the Ombudsman noted that outside Greater London,
other councils and landlords should also take note of the recommendations and
learning points, especially in other urban areas, as they provide vital indicators of
where things go wrong and how to stop that from happening.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

The report recommends that landlords:

» Foster a positive complaints culture - leadership and governance should be seen
to support the complaints’ function, including promoting internal cooperation
and engagement with the complaints process;

+ Don’t lose sight of the person at the centre of a complaints issue - try to
ameliorate the impact of issues outside the landlord’s full control and avoid
blame. Be clear about landlord responsibilities where resolution involves dealing
with third parties;

» Show that the resident’s experience is important - ensure that details are taken
and recorded appropriately so that residents feel listened to; the right solution is
found to resolve the issue swiftly; and the communication to the resident is
courteous and accurate;

* Remember that complaint handling is a landlord’s opportunity to regain a
resident’s Council after they have had a bad experience; and

* Use insight and intelligence from complaints strategically. This ranges from
effective root cause analysis of casework through to identifying risks and horizon
scanning.

The report makes good reading for members looking to better understand how they
can help to stop things going wrong in the council’s relationship with residents.

London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 18

09 abed


https://www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Insight-report-London-FINAL.pdf
https://www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Insight-report-London-FINAL.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Audit Committee resources

The Audit Committee and organisational effectiveness in
local authorities (CIPFA):

https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-
authority-audit-committees

LGA Regional Audit Forums for Audit Committee Chairs

These are convened at least three times a year and are
supported by the LGA. The forums provide an opportunity to
share good practice, discuss common issues and offer training
on key topics. Forums are organised by a lead authority in each
region. Please email ami.beeton@local.gov.uk LGA Senior
Adviser, for more information.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-
internal-audit-standards

Code of Audit Practice for local auditors (NAO):
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/

Governance risk and resilience framework: material for
those with a leadership responsibility on good governance
(CfGS):

https://www.cfgs.org.uk/material-for-those-with-a-leadership-
responsibility-on-good-governance/

The Three Lines of Defence Model (IAA)

https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/resources/the-iias-
three-lines-model-an-update-of-the-three-lines-of-defense-july-
2020/three-lines-model-updated-english.pdf

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Risk Management Guidance / The Orange Book (UK Government):
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/orange-book
CIPFA Guidance and Codes

The following all have a charge, so do make enquiries to determine if
copies are available within your organisation.

Audit Committees: Practical Guidance For Local Authorities And Police

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-
committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-
edition

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government

T9 abed

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-
good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition

Financial Management Code

https://www.cipfa.org/fmcode

Prudential Code

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-
code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2021-edition

Treasury Management Code

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-
management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-
guidance-notes-2021-edition

London Borough of Enfield | Sep 2024 19


https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-authority-audit-committees
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-authority-audit-committees
mailto:ami.beeton@local.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/material-for-those-with-a-leadership-responsibility-on-good-governance/
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/material-for-those-with-a-leadership-responsibility-on-good-governance/
https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/resources/the-iias-three-lines-model-an-update-of-the-three-lines-of-defense-july-2020/three-lines-model-updated-english.pdf
https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/resources/the-iias-three-lines-model-an-update-of-the-three-lines-of-defense-july-2020/three-lines-model-updated-english.pdf
https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/resources/the-iias-three-lines-model-an-update-of-the-three-lines-of-defense-july-2020/three-lines-model-updated-english.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/orange-book
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/fmcode
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2021-edition

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement and
signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly for
the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP.

29 abed



° Grant Thornton

Interim Auditor’s Annual Report on
London Borough of Enfield

2023/24

October 2024



Commercial in confidence

Contents

Section Page
@ Executive summary 3
Use of auditor’s powers 5
Key recommendations 6
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) Securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 12
of the Loco.l Audit and Accountability Act The current LG landscape 13
2014 to satisfy ourselves that the . . .
Council has made proper arrangements Financial sustainability 15
for securing economy, efficiency and Financial governance 37 T
effectiveness in its use of resources. The Improvement recommendations L1 8
Code of Audit Practice issued by the Governance o @
National Audit Office (NAQ) requires us »
to report to you our commentary Improvement recommendations 53 B
relating to proper arrangements. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 57
We report if significant matters have Improvement recommendations 63
come to our attention. We are not Opinion on the financial statements 66
requl.red to consider, nor have we Other reporting requirements 67
considered, whether all aspects of the
Council’s arrangements for securing Appendices
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in Appendix A - Responsibilities of the Council 69
163 U0 0 [ tes CliD lgeirel i) Appendix B - An explanatory note on recommendations 70

effectively.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of completing our work under the NAO
Code and related guidance. Our audit is not designed to test all arrangements in respect of value for money. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify significant weaknesses, we will report these to you.
In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in arrangements that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept
any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting, on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered
office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are
not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024



Commercial in confidence

Executive summary (continued)

Value for money arrangements and key recommendation(s)

g,

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Auditors are required to report their commentary on the Council’s arrangements under specified criteria and 2023/24 is the fourth year
that these arrangement have been in place. Your previous external auditor is yet to issue an Auditor’s Annual Report for 2019/20 - 2022/23 inclusive, however we understand they are
proposing an Adverse Conclusion in relation to the 2019/20 which is assessed in line with NAO's Auditor Guidance (AGN 03) November 2017. Therefore, we have had to produce our
commentary without knowledge of the final outcome of the VM work for prior audit periods. We will be mindful of any findings from your previous external auditor once they report and may
need to revisit our findings as a result. As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources. Where we identify significant weaknesses in arrangements, we are required to make recommendations so that the Council may set out actions to
make improvements. Our conclusions are summarised in the table below. The National Audit Office, in its consultation of February 2024, has indicated that it will in future require auditors to
share a draft Auditors Annual Report (“ the Report”) with those charged with governance by a nationally set deadline each year and for the audited body to publish the Report thereafter. As

a firm, we are committed to reporting the results of our local audit work on as timely a basis as possible. We are therefore sharing this report with you in advance of the National Audit Office’s g

new Code being introduced. In the event that any new audit requirements are introduced when the Code is published, we will revisit these before finalising this report. ‘-8

Criteria Risk assessment 2023/24 Auditor judgement on arrangements g
Ourinitial planning identified a risk of significant Three significant weaknesses identified, and three key recommendations made.

weakness in respect of the Council’s financial
sustainability inconsideration of the challenges
identified within its medium-term financial strategy.

Financial sustainability Additionally, eight improvement recommendations identified in this area as well.

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but four improvement

Governance No risks of significant weakness identified. A .
recommendations made.

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but three improvement

Improving economy,
recommendations made.

efficiency and effectiveness No risks of significant weakness identified. A

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 3



Commercial in confidence

Executive summary

Financial sustainability

Your previous external auditor is yet to issue an Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21 to 2022/23 inclusive, therefore the Council has

not had the opportunity to incorporate any findings for these periods. The Auditors Annual Report for 2023/24 therefore contains Fi ial S

a more expansive commentary which includes recommendations that might have, in the normal course of events, been raised in @ In.OE'\CIO e L

prior years. opinion

The local government sector is operating with a significant degree of financial uncertainty. The Council, like others in the sector, We are yet to issue an audit opinion on the

is faced with substantial financial challenges that has led to a deficit budget outturn for 2022/23 and 2023/24. The Council Council’s financial statements for 2023/24.
understands the financial challenges it faces and has taken several key steps to contain budget overspends, reduce the revenue Our 2023/2+ work is underway, and the Audit
impact of its capital programme, and made significant decisions in respect of controllable spend. The Council has also Plan was considered by General Purposes

proactively engaged with the wider organisation to identify potential future savings to support significant budget gaps within its ~~ Committee on 26 June 2024.
medium-term financial planning. However, the scale of the financial challenges the Council is facing creates a significant risk to

the overall financial sustainability of the Council in the short term and due to the significance of this matter we have raised a

key recommendation. See page 8 - 9 for more details.

The Council’s Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit is £14.76m as of 31 March 2024, and is of a level which creates financial
risk to the Council. Our work has also established inconsistencies in the Council’'s DSG deficit data and highlights opportunities
for the Council to strengthen its oversight and internal controls in respect of its DSG position. Furthermore, the Council is
currently reviewing its strategic arrangements in relation to a Council owned company which will require careful assessment
and close monitoring as these arrangements are developed. These two areas present significant financial risk to the Council.
Due to the significance of these matters, we have raised two key recommendations. See pages 6 - 7 and 10 - 11 for more details.

99 abed

Additionally, we have raised eight improvement recommendations. See pages 41to 48 for more details.

Governance

The Council had arrangements to support its control environment during the reporting period, evidenced by its risk management
processes and through the activities of Internal Audit and the General Purposes Committee. We have found no significant
weaknesses in the Council’s governance arrangements. However, we have identified areas where the Council could improve
arrangements and as such, have raised four improvement recommendations. See pages 53 to 56 for more details.

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

B

@:}x During 2023/24 the Council refreshed and reviewed its corporate plan “Investing in Enfield. This covers the period from 2023 to
2026 and provides five priorities for the Council over this period. The Council operates an established performance framework,
including the function of Council companies, supported by oversight and governance.

Our work has not identified evidence of significant weaknesses within the arrangements in place. However, we have identified -
areas where the Council could improve arrangements and as such, have raised three improvement recommendations. See pages
63 - 65 for more details.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 4



Commercial in confidence

Use of auditor's powers

We bring the following matters to your attention:

2023/24

Statutory recommendations At the time of issuing this draft report, we
have not made any written

Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors can make written recommendations to the audited body which  scommendations under Schedule 7 of

need to be considered by the body and responded to publicly. the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014
Public Interest Report At the time of issuing this draft report, we

. . . . . . have not issued a public interest report.
Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have the power to make a report if they consider a matter is

sufficiently important to be brought to the attention of the audited body or the public as a matter of urgency, including matters which may
already be known to the public, but where it is in the public interest for the auditor to publish their independent view.

19 abed

Application to the Court At the time of issuing this draft report, we

have not made an application to the
Under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, if auditors think that an item of account is contrary to law, they may apply court.

to the court for a declaration to that effect.

Advisory notice At the time of issuing this draft report, we

have not issued any advisory notices.
Under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may issue an advisory notice if the auditor thinks that the

authority or an officer of the authority:

is about to make or has made a decision which involves or would involve the authority incurring unlawful expenditure,
.

is about to take or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss
or deficiency, or

is about to enter an item of account, the entry of which is unlawful.

Judicial review At the time of issuing this draft report, we
have not made an application for

Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may make an application for judicial review of a decision of an judicial review.

authority, or of a failure by an authority to act, which it is reasonable to believe would have an effect on the accounts of that body.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Draft and Interim London Borough of Enfield— Auditors Annual Report | August 2024 &



Commercial in confidence

Key Recommendations

We recommend the Council needs to place a significant focus on developing, modelling and The range of

implementing interventions which will support the management and reduction of the Dedicated Schools .

Grant (DSG) deficit (£14.75m as of 31 March 2024). recommendcftlons that
external auditors can

Additionally, the Council should ensure that specific training is provided to Schools Forum members in make is explained in
Keu Recommendation 1 matters relating to DSG deficit, progress in respect of managing DSG deficit interventions are regularly .
Y : overseen by those charge with governance, and financial risks relating to the DSG deficit are added to Appendlx B.

the Council’s Corporate Risk Register.

We also recommend the Council ensures finance team capacity provided to the actual service in the
development of DSG deficit management plans is sufficient and additional internal controls are
established within the people service to ensure accurate data is provided to members and DfE.

The level of the Council’s DSG deficit creates significant financial risk to the Council. Our work has also
established inconsistencies in the Council’s DSG deficit data and highlights opportunities for the Council
to strengthen its oversight and internal controls in respect of DSG deficit matters.

Identified significant
weakness in arrangements

89 abed

The Council DSG deficit is substantial despite council intervention, additionally information included in
reports provided to members of the Schools Forum and central government have not been consistent.

Criteria impacted by the . . C Financial
. g Financial sustainability
significant weakness Governance

Based on the work undertaken, we are not satisfied that the Council had proper arrangements in place to
Auditor judgement secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources in 2023/24. We have therefore
identified a significant weakness in arrangements.

Summary findings

Progressing the actions management has identified to address the recommendations made will support the Council in addressing the weaknesses identified from our work. We consider that
the timescales provided by management are appropriate and encourage the General Purposes Committee to monitor progress of implementation to gain assurance over the arrangements
in place.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 6



Commercial in confidence

Key Recommendations (continued)

The range of
recommendations that
external auditors can

make is explained in
The recommendations are agreed. Appendix B.

A dedicated DSG board will be set up to meet on a quarterly basis to include senior education and
finance staff to have oversight of the DSG with specific reference to the high needs budget. They will
oversee the development of and implementation of the DSG management plan including the DBV plan.
Representation will include the Directors of Finance and Education, the Head of SEND, the DBV
programme manager and the Chair of Schools Forum. The DSG board will be accountable to EMT budget

Key Recommendation 1 whilst also reporting to Schools Forum and as necessary the SEND Partnership Board.

(continued)

Schools Forum training on DSG deficit will be undertaken. This training will also be presented to the
Management Comments Executive Management Team Budget meeting.

69 abed

DSG deficit risk will be added to the Council’s risk register formally in the next quarter. The Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) references the “DSG deficit risk” under the Financial Resilience Section.
Progress against the AGS action plan is scheduled to be considered at the Council’s Assurance Board in
November 2024.

The Head of Schools Finance interviews take place on week commencing 16 September. This is a specialist
areaq, but we are anticipating an appointment with a start date by January 2025. The pace of progress
will be able to accelerate once this role is filled.

Progressing the actions management has identified to address the recommendations made will support the Council in addressing the weaknesses identified from our work. We consider that
the timescales provided by management are appropriate and encourage the General Purposes Committee to monitor progress of implementation to gain assurance over the arrangements
in place.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 7



Commercial in confidence

Key Recommendations (continued)

We recommend the Council places a significant and immediate focus on: The range of
Developing mitigations to contain further emerging budget pressures. recommendc:ftlons that
Key Recommendation 2 * Identifying further planned savings, and wider alternatives to the use of reserves, in the management external auditors can
of budget gaps identified within the Council’s MTFS. make is explained in

These actions will support the Council to remain financially sustainable in the short term. Appendlx B.

The Council has a significant budget gap (£85.99m) within the MTFS 2024/25 - 2028/29, with substantial
savings required to be identified during 2024/25 (to be incorporated in the 2025/26 budget). The level of
Identified significant Council general fund reserves are of a level that offers limited contingency and have been further eroded
weakness in arrangements by a worse than forecast revenue outturn for 2023/24. The Council is also being impacted by an
emerging budget pressure that the Council became aware of in quarter 3 2023/24. These factors create
significant financial risk to the Council.

The Council general fund was overspent by £21.2 million in 2022/23 and £39.4 million in 2023/24. These
overspends have significantly reduced reserves levels. The Council’s MTFS 20244/25 - 2028/29 identifies, o
significant budget gap of £85.99 million for the period 2025/26 - 2028/29 which represents 27% of the

Summary findings 2024/25 net revenue budget. The Council is being significantly impacted from an emerging budget
pressure (£6.8m) identified in quarter 3 2023/24 relating to housing benefit subsidy loss where there is an
increasing material difference between the housing benefit subsidy level and the amount that can be
reclaimed from the government for supported living accommodation.

qut?r,la impacted by the @ Financial sustainability
significant weakness

0/ abed

Based on the work undertaken, we are not satisfied that the Council had proper arrangements in place to
Auditor judgement secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources in 2023/24. We have therefore
identified a significant weakness in arrangements.

Progressing the actions management has identified to address the recommendations made will support the Council in addressing the weaknesses identified from our work. We consider that
the timescales provided by management are appropriate and encourage the General Purposes Committee to monitor progress of implementation to gain assurance over the arrangements
in place.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 8



Commercial in confidence

Key Recommendations (continued)

The recommendations are agreed and already in progress as set out below: The range of

recommendations that

September 2024 - £10.2m savings/income proposals were agreed at Cabinet for 25/26. X
external auditors can

October 2024, second budget week to identify additional savings/income. make is explained in
Already in place - specific action plans to reduce the Housing Benefit Subsidy Loss and Homelessness Appendlx B.

Key Recommendation 2 cost pressure. Other in-year overspends management action plans are being reviewed at Executive

(continued) Management Team Budget meetings. Progress is monitored by the Executive Management Team for all of
these actions.

Management Comments The consultation for Councils to be able to utilise capital receipts to address financial pressures is

awaiting an update following the change in government. The Council is expecting a closing balance of
£23m uncommitted capital receipts at the end of 2024/25. A disposals programme update was presented
to September 2024 Cabinet.

T/ abed

A Spend Control Panel for all purchase orders has been in place since April 2024. There are a number of
panels across Children's Services in place to review high-cost placements.

Progressing the actions management has identified to address the recommendations made will support the Council in addressing the weaknesses identified from our work. We consider that
the timescales provided by management are appropriate and encourage the General Purposes Committee to monitor progress of implementation to gain assurance over the arrangements
in place.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 9



Commercial in confidence

Key Recommendations (continued)

We recommend the Council comprehensively identifies, quantifies, and manages the financial and non-

financial risks associated with its involvement in Energetik and these are assessed, along with proposed The range of
Keu Recommendation 3 mitigations, in each stage of the Energetik project plan for strategic review to be agreed by the Council dati that
Y during 2024/25 onwards. We also recommend the Council satisfies itself that the planned governance recommendations tha
and oversight arrangements in respect of the Energetik project plan for strategic review are sufficient external auditors can

considering the potential implications of decisions on the Council. make is explained in

Appendix B.

The Council has not clearly identified in the Energetik Operating Plan and Project Plan for Strategic
Review Report the full range of financial and non-financial risks that could impact the Council if
assumptions within the Energetik’s revised operating plan are not accurate. The Council has not clearly
identified, within the report, any risks identified by external advice provided to the Council as a
shareholder, nor has the Council clearly identified how such risks could potentially impact the strategic
review process. Worst, best and optimum scenarios were not included and there was no reference to
sensitivity analysis of key assumptions in the report.

Identified significant
weakness in arrangements

2/ abed

Energetik’s, a wholly owned Council company, has been impacted by adverse economic conditions that
Summary findings has negatively affected financial assumptions within its original business case. The Council has reviewed
the companies operating plan and intends to review its business plan and strategic future.

Criteria impacted by the . . - Financial
. e Financial sustainability
significant weakness Governance

Based on the work undertaken, we are not satisfied that the Council had proper arrangements in place to
Auditor judgement secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources in 2023/2%. We have therefore
identified a significant weakness in arrangements.

Progressing the actions management has identified to address the recommendations made will support the Council in addressing the weaknesses identified from our work. We consider that
the timescales provided by management are appropriate and encourage the General Purposes Committee to monitor progress of implementation to gain assurance over the arrangements
in place.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 10



Commercial in confidence

Key Recommendations (continued)

The recommendations are agreed.

The Council and Energetik have taken significant action to respond to the market conditions and The range of .

economic circumstances for a complex infrastructure project that was started in a different economic recommendations that

climate. This work will continue with vigour during 2024/25, including an updated Business Plan to external auditors can

Cabinet which will address the points raised in the recommendation. . . .
make is explained in

Key Recommendation 3 November 2024 - there is already a scheduled an update and review of our existing Company Risk Appendix B.
(continued) Register planned for Assurance Board.
Management Comments Regular cycle of bi-monthly meetings in place - the progress against the Project Plan is reviewed monthly

by the Informal Shareholder Board (which includes Energetik and Council stakeholders).

December 2024 - a review of the governance arrangements for the strategic review of Energetik will be
undertaken. There is a risk register for Energetik, an informal shareholder board, quarterly reports to
Cabinet (which are also considered by the Executive Management Team), a project plan, regular
shareholder dashboard updates, and a Shareholder Adviser is in place.

¢/ abed

Progressing the actions management has identified to address the recommendations made will support the Council in addressing the weaknesses identified from our work. We consider that
the timescales provided by management are appropriate and encourage the General Purposes Committee to monitor progress of implementation to gain assurance over the arrangements
in place.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 1l



Commercial in confidence

Securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the Council’s use of

resources

All councils are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness from their resources. This includes taking properly informed decisions and managing key

operational and financial risks so that they can deliver their objectives and safeguard public money. The
Council’s responsibilities are set out in Appendix A.

Councils report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part of their annual governance statement.

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, we are required to be satisfied whether the Council has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

The National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note (AGN]) 03, requires us to assess arrangements under three areas:

Financial sustainability

Arrangements for ensuring the Council
can continue to deliver services. This
includes planning resources to ensure
adequate finances and maintain
sustainable levels of spending over the
medium term

(3-5 years).

Governance

Arrangements for ensuring that the
Council makes appropriate decisions in
the right way. This includes arrangements
for budget setting and management, risk
management, and ensuring the Council
makes decisions based on appropriate
information.

* Improving economy,
@# efficiency and effectiveness

Arrangements for improving the way the
Council delivers its services. This includes
arrangements for understanding costs and
delivering efficiencies and improving
outcomes for service users.

Our commentary on the Council’s arrangements in each of these three areas, is set out on pages 12 to 65.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

In addition to our financial
statements audit work, we
perform a range of procedures
to inform our value for money
commentary:

¢ Review of Council, Cabinet and
committee reports

* Regular meetings with senior officers

¢ Interviews with other members and
management

¢ Attendance at Audit Committee

* Considering the work of internal
audit

* Reviewing reports from third parties
including Ofsted

* Reviewing the Council’s Annual
Governance Statement and other
publications

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024

v, abed



Commercial in confidence

The current LG landscape

&

National context

Local government in England remains a challenged sector. In recent years, generationally significant levels of inflation have put pressure on councils’ General Fund revenue and capital
expenditure. The associated cost of living crisis drove an increase in demand for council services such as social care and homelessness. At the same time, the crisis impacted adversely on key
areas of council income that were needed to service the increase in demand, for example fees and charges and the collection rates for council tax, business rates and rents.

For Housing Revenue Accounts, inflation in recent years led to cost increases often outstripping rent rises. In the coming years, new legal duties on landlords are expected to increase costs
further, without there necessarily being any additional funding to cover the new costs. At the same time, high construction prices are making it harder for councils to invest in the new
accommodation which might have helped make savings in the revenue account, for example on temporary accommodation and homelessness. Housing Revenue Accounts are under further
pressure due to regulatory challenges in housing quality in the light of national issues in respect of cladding and damp/mould issues.

G/ abed

In January 2024, the UK government announced an additional £600 million for local government, but the Spring Budget for 2024 brought little in the way of any further support. Rising costs
of delivering services, coupled with workforce shortages in key areas, supply chain fragility, and rising interest rates for servicing debt, brought a level of crisis to the local government sector
perhaps never experienced before. Current warning signs of difficulty include:

* Nine councils issuing eleven section 114 notices, effectively signalling bankruptcy, between 2019 and 2023, compared with two councils issuing notices between 2001 and 2018;

* Anincreasing number of other councils publicly warning of a section 114 risk;

+  Nineteen councils being set to receive exceptional financial support for 2024/25, needing around £1.5 billion. Only six of the nineteen councils had previously issued a section 114 notice.
There was no prior public anticipation of exceptional need for the other thirteen councils; and

*  The Local Government Association warning that councils in England face a funding gap of £4 billion over the course of 2023/24 and 2024/25.

Local government is coming under an increased spotlight in terms of how the sector responds to the financial challenge it faces. Since the start of 2024, the UK government has emphasised
the need for increased productivity rather than increased funds. New plans were announced by the Chancellor in March 2024 for public sector productivity to deliver up to £1.8 billion worth
of benefits by 2029. It seems likely that councils will be asked to develop and share productivity plans, showing how they will improve service performance and reduce wasteful spend. The
approach to producing the plans is not yet agreed but the need for a new focus on performance in general is clear. The Institute for Government estimates that performance was worse on the
eve of the pandemic than it had been ten years before for adult social care and children’s social care and neighbourhood services. It estimates that performance has at best stayed the same
but more often deteriorated even further since the pandemic.

Financial crisis and workforce crisis together place pressure on governance for the local government sector. Recent years have seen a rise in the instance of auditors issuing statutory
recommendations around the need for improved governance, whilst at the same time an audit backlog has been growing since 2019. The government is now taking steps to end the backlog,
consulting, for example, on backstop measures. Whilst prompter audit won’t solve the financial crisis faced by the sector or enhance performance, it may help with delivering earlier warnings,
allowing for swifter action and perhaps stronger mitigation. Although recruitment and retention is problematic in the current environment, there are new staff in post at many councils now,
often valiantly working to resolve issues that had their origin in decisions taken years ago. With a renewed focus on training, technology and good governance, the outlook for the sector may
still be positive despite the many challenges it faces.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 13



Commercial in confidence

The current LG landscape (continued)
%

Local context

The London Borough of Enfield (the Council) is one of 32 London Borough Councils, that together with the City of London make up the administrative area of Greater London. The London
Borough Councils were all created on 1 April 1965 by the London Government Act 1963. More recently an additional tier of local government for London was created in 2000 called the Greater
London Authority, comprising the Mayor of London and the London Assembly. The 32 London Borough Councils and the City of London provide the majority of services to residents whereas
the Mayor of London sets an overall vision and strategic plan for London and is responsible for key functions including fire and emergency planning, policing and crime policy, economic
development and transport.

The Council has developed over time from a number of historic towns and villages along historic trading and transport routes with Enfield Town, Palmers Green, Southgate, Angel Edmonton
and Edmonton Green being developing into significant urban and economic areas. One third of the Council’s area is designated Green Belt. The rural parts of the Council supports includes a
number of important parks, woodlands and watercourses. Notable attractions include Enfield Chase, Capel Manor and the registered gardens of Trent Park, Forty Hall and Myddelton House.
Parts of the Borough also form part of the Lee Valley Regional Park, a natural resource of national importance.

The Council is 12 miles from the centre of London, covers an area of 31.7 square miles, shares boundaries with three other London Boroughs: Waltham Forest to the east, Haringey to the south
and Barnet to the west also the Borough adjoins the County of Hertfordshire to the north. The Borough is the 7th largest London borough by population. The Borough has seen population
growth in recent years with the population increasing by 5.6%, from 312,000 in 2011 to 330,000 in 2021, within 131,000 households. However, the rate of growth was lower than the overall
population of London (7.7%), and by a smaller percentage than the overall population of England (up é.6% since the 2011 Census). The Borough population is ageing. Between the last two
censuses, the median age of residents within the Borough increased from 34 to 37 years of age. The Borough had a higher average (median) age than London as a whole in 2021 (35 years)
but a lower average (median) age than England (40 years). 54.2% of residents aged 16 years and over, were employed (excluding full-time students) in 2021, marginally down from 54.2% in
2011. During the same period, the regional percentage increased from 58.6% to 59.4%. The 2019 Indices of Multiple Deprivation identified that in the Borough, 17.1% of the population was
income-deprived in 2019. Of the 316 local authorities in England Enfield is ranked 41st most income deprived.

9/ abed

The Council has 63 elected Members. Elections are held every four years. At the local elections in May 2022 Labour maintained its control of the Council. The current political balance of the
Council following the May 2022 elections is Labour 37, Conservatives 25, and independent 1. The Council Plan 2023-2026, adopted by full Council on 14 June 2023, sets out the strategic
priorities and focus of the administration and includes five main priorities:

. Clean and green places

. Strong, healthy and safe communities
. Thriving children and young people

. More and better homes

. An economy that works for everyone

The Council has identified six outcomes that they are seeking to positively impact by delivering on the above priorities being: residents live happy, healthy and safe lives, residents earn
enough to support themselves and their families, children and young people do well at all levels of learning, residents age well, residents live in good quality homes they can afford, and
residents live in a carbon neutral borough. The Council Plan 2023-2026 states performance against these outcome will be assessed quarterly by Cabinet. Matters relating to Council
performance are covered in more detail within the economy, efficiency and effectiveness section of this report.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 it



Financial sustainability

We considered
how the Council:

identifies all the significant
financial pressures that are
relevant to its short and medium-
term plans and builds them into
its plans

plans to bridge its funding gaps
and identify achievable savings

plans its finances to support the
sustainable delivery of services in
accordance with strategic and
statutory priorities

ensures its financial plan is
consistent with other plans such
as workforce, capital, investment
and other operational planning
which may include working with
other local public bodies as part
of a wider system

identifies and manages risk to
financial resilience, such as
unplanned changes in demand
and assumptions underlying its
plans.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Outturn 2022/23

General Fund

The Council’s final General Fund Revenue Outturn Report for
2022/23 was considered by Cabinet on 13 September 2023. The
report provided background and context to the challenging
financial situation within which the Council was operating.

The financial challenges faced by the Council during 2022/23
included inflationary rises, increased costs of homelessness,
ongoing growth in social care demand, post Covid-19 disruption
to key income streams and wider impacts of the cost-of-living
crisis. The Council’s final general fund outturn was a net
overspend of £21.2 million representing 8.2% of the net revenue
budget for 2022/23.

The most significant budget variance was a £7 millon overspend in
respect of temporary accommodation reflecting the Council’s
reliance on commercial hotels, to accommodate residents applying
for homelessness assistance, due to a lack of supply lack of
alternative private rented accommodation and the limitations to the
level of housing costs that could be reclaimed through Housing
Benefit. Matters relating to the Council’s homelessness service is
covered in more detail later in this section.

During 2022/23 pressures on the Council’s social care budgets
resulted in several overspends which included:

£2.8 million overspend Children and Families - contributory factors
included a higher-than-expected rise in the number of external
residential placements leading to increased costs which was further
exacerbated by the Council having to respond to more complex
support needs for those accessing the service. The Council’s service
for disabled children, reported higher than anticipated demand due
to a significant increase in requests for rest bite services and higher
than budgeted rises in commissioning and direct payment costs.

£1.8 million overspend Adult Social Care & Public Health - increased
demand and complexity, impacted by the closure of a care home, led
to overspends in the Council’s learning disability services.

Commercial in confidence

Additionally higher demand and associated complexity of care
placements in respect of hospital discharges further impacted
directorate budgets with overspends partially offset by one off in
year funding from central government and one-off funding support
from the integrated care board.

Digital services costs were overspent by £2.8 million due to Council’s
proactive activity to combat cyber security threats, increases to
agency staff costs and wider digital service contract costs.

The General Fund Revenue Outturn Report for 2022/23 also reported
a £1.6 million underachievement of parking income, reflecting
suppressed market conditions resulting from the ongoing disruption,
on this key Council income stream, emanating from the Covid-19
pandemic and subsequent changes in consumer habits. Waste

/] abed

services were overspent by £1m due to increase levels of household
waste being presented by residents, leading to higher staff, vehicle
and recycling centres costs with service overspends further
compounded by rising vehicle fuel costs.

The General Fund Outturn Report for 2022/23 also reported several
overspends relating to corporate budgets items, that related to a
higher than anticipated employee pay award, increased cost of
utilities, and higher than budgeted financing costs all of which
resulted in a combined corporate budget overspend of £1.6 million.

The overall budget deficit of £21.2 million for 2022/23 was funded
from a general fund earmarked with the General Fund Outturn Report
2022/23 outlining how the Council’s overall reserves had reduced
significantly during the financial years 2021/22 and 2022/23. The
Council’s total reserves and balances (excluding Housing Revenue
Account and School’s reserve] were £101.8 million as of 31 March 2023
and should the Council continue to overspend at the level seen in
2022/23 all reserves would be exhausted within five years. The
Council’s general fund reserves, unallocated and earmarked, are
examined in more detail later within this report.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 15



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Outturn 2022/23 - HRA (continued)
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The Council’s HRA Final Outturn Report for 2022/23 was also considered by Cabinet on
13 September 2023. This report detailed that the revenue outturn for the HRA was an
underspend of £0.7 million against the original budget.

The HRA Final Outturn for 2022/23 represented a significant improvement in comparison to
the previous HRA revenue forecast for 2022/23 (as of November 2022), presented to Cabinet
on 8 February 2023, which forecast a HRA revenue overspend of £2m.

The improved HRA revenue outturn was supported by the release, during 2022/23, of a long-
term provision held by the Council of £2.9m. This amount was held by the Council to mitigate
against potential legal claims in relation to historical water and sewage charges. The
Council explained the potential liability for such claims had ended in 2022/23 allowing for
the release of this one-off provision to support the HRA 2022/23 budget. If this provision had
not been released the HRA would have overspent by £2.2 million.

Significant budget variances included an overspend of supervision and management costs
of £2.1 million relating to additional costs associated with decanting three high rise housing
blocks for essential gas works, improvements to the wider HRA estate and higher than
anticipated energy costs due to sharp rises in year rises in energy market prices.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Reactive repairs was overspent by £0.7 million due to higher than budgeted inflation rises in
relation to materials and contractor costs and due to additional repairs work relating to the
Council’s response to matters of damp and mould issues.

The HRA Final Outturn Report 2022/23 also detailed a £0.6 million underachievement rent
income due to delays in the completion of new Council housing and in part due to the impact
of the vacant high rise housing blocks referenced earlier in this report.

Rising interest rates has led to £0.6 million in additional investment income derived from HRA
balances and reserves. The HRA bad debt provision was lower than budgeted, with arrears
levels stabilising, resulting in £0.4 million of additional revenue income. The HRA Final Outturn
Report 2022/23 explain that budgeted HRA savings of £1m for 2022/23 had in fact been
exceed by £0.2m in part due to reduced levels of recharges and higher than budgeted
building hire income. The overall HRA underspend for 2022/23 further supported the Council’s
HRA reserves levels. HRA reserves are examined in more detail later in this section.

Budget 2023/24

8/ obed

General Fund

On 23 February 2023, Full Council considered the 2023/24 Budget Report which
recommended a balanced net revenue budget of £286.9 million for 2023/24, a 10.44%
increase from the prior year. The 2023/24 Budget Report described in detail the
financial uncertainty being faced by the Council, and the wider sector, due to
generationally significant inflation rises, post pandemic disruption to Council services
and income streams, the short-term nature of local government settlements and the
further postponement of local government finance reform by the government. The
Council’s in-depth assessment of the challenging financial environment, within which the
2023/24 budget had been formed, provided informative context, background and analysis
which represents good practice.

The 2023/24 Budget Report clearly set out the local government finance settlement for
2023/24 which was confirmed on 6 February 2023. The settlement distributes a range of
grants and business rate income allocations to local authorities including the Settlement
Funding Assessment (SFA] which is comprised of locally retained business and a Revenue
Support Grant. The 2023/24 Budget Report explained that for 2023/24 the Council’s SFA was
£110.1 million, and overall increase of £12.7 million from the prior year, however the report
stated that despite the increases seen in SFA from 2020/21 to 2023/24 there has been an
overall decline in the level of SFA (or equivalent funding regime) since 2010/11.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 16



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Budget 2023/24 (continued)

The report also detailed that the Council would receive a social care grant of £21.1 million,
representing growth of £8.4 million when compared to the prior year, with additional social
care grant funding of £4.6 million for 2023/24 from the adult social care market
sustainability and improvement fund and adult social care discharge fund. The Council
would also receive an improved better care fund grant of £11.7 million intended to support
adult social care spending, reduce pressures on the NHS, facilitate higher rates of hospital
discharge and ensuring that the social care provider market is supported. The budget report
also set out that the Council estimated it would receive in 2023/24 a £18.3 million public
health grant to support the improvement of residents’ health and to support the reduction of
health inequalities within the borough, a homelessness prevention grant and rough sleeping
initiative funding of £10 million, supporting families grant of £1.9 million to assist locall
families with significant and complex need and a housing benefit administration grant of £1.4
million. Additionally, the report explained the Council would receive a services grant of £3
million and a new homes bonus of £0.7 million, with the report explaining future payments of
these specific grants remained uncertain.

The report set out the council tax base which included modest growth assumptions reflecting
underlying economic uncertainty. For the financial year 2023/24 the government introduced
additional flexibility for Councils in setting council tax levels and the report recommended an
annual council tax increase of 4.99% for a band D property comprising of a 2.99% core
increase and a 2% adult social care precept to help fund adult social care demand
pressures. The increase of 4.99%, combined with the tax base growth, would resultin £7.5
million of additional council tax income in comparison to the previous year.

The Council’s 2023/24 budget itemised budgetary growth items totalling £46 million. The
report noted the significant impact of rising inflation on the Council financial planning with
inflationary pressures alone representing £23.3 million of the total growth for 2023/24, three
times higher than prior year assumptions. Service and demographic pressures in children’s
social care, special educational needs, transport and adult social care were other significant
contributors to growth pressures, representative of sector wide issues, in relation to these
demand led service areas. Capital financing costs increased by £5 million in 2023/24, with
the report explaining this growth was reflective of significant rises in interest rate and
incorporated the latest interest rate forecasts. Fully itemised savings and income proposals
of £14.2 million in 2023/24 that would help mitigate the 2023/24 budget pressures were also
clearly set out. The Council’s savings strategy is covered in more detail later within this
section.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The report also set out the use of £10.9 million of reserves to support the 2023/24 budget,
whilst increasing the general fund working balance by £0.5 million to £14.5 million as of 31
March 2024.

Dedicated Schools Grant ([DSG) and the Schools Budget for 2023/24 was also set out within
the 2023/24 Budget Report. The DSG allocation for 2023/24 was £401.1 million, an increase
of 2.88% from the prior year. The report explained the Council was currently managing
significant budgetary risk in relation to the DSG mainly due to increases in cost resulting
from rises in the number of children with special educational need as these pupils where
often placed in expensive, specialist independent educational provision that could lead to
unfunded increased costs to the school’s budget further impacting the DSG cumulative
deficit of £15.24 million.

The report included reference to a widely promoted public budget consultation conducted
during the period 28 October 2022 to 29 December 2022, and a summary of consultation
responses was included within the suite of 2023/24 budget papers. The Council’s budget
consultation process and publication of outcomes demonstrates the Council willingness to
engage the public in the budget setting process and supports transparency which is good
practice.

6/ abed

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 17



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Budget 2023/24 (continued)
HRA

On 23 February 2023 Full Council also considered the HRA Budget 2023/24, Rent
Setting and Business Plan Update Report.

The HRA’s main source of revenue income is from rent charged to tenants, the levels to
which rents can be increased is set by regulatory policy.

The government’s Autumn Statement 2022 confirmed a 7% rent ceiling from 1 April 2023
to 31 March 2024 which would act as an upper limit on the maximum amount by which
registered providers of social housing could increase social rents in that year. The
2023/24 HRA Budget Report recommended social rent charges should be increased by
7% in line with Government guidelines.

Proposed tenants’ service charges for 2023/24 were also clearly set out, supported by prior
year comparative data, explanations of new or enhanced charges including the impacts of
rapidly fluctuating utility costs, due to market volatility, on communal heating charges.

The Council is also a freeholder of 4,900 homes that were previously sold to tenants under
the right-to-buy legislation and proposed leaseholder service charges for 2023/24 were
individually itemised and the report included rationale of the proposed changes.

The Council’s detailed explanation of proposed changes to rent and services charges
supports transparency and is good practice.

The 2023/24 HRA Budget Report set out the HRA revenue budget which forecast HRA revenue
income to be £73 million, principally comprising of rents and service charges. Forecast HRA
revenue expenditure for 2023/24 was also £73 million and included £22.4 million supervision
and management charges, which included an assumed 5% pay award, responsive repairs
and maintenance expenditure of £15.1 million, up from £13.7 million in 2022/23, reflecting the
impacts of rising inflation on the costs of materials and services and financing costs for
2023/24% were £15.8 million, up from £10.9 million in 2022/23, reflecting an increased level of
borrowing to fund the HRA capital programme, intended to support investment in existing
Council homes and the provision of properties.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The 2023/24 HRA Budget Report also explained that the HRA revenue budget forecast a net
operating surplus of £6.8 million which would be available to support the HRA working
balances and reserves. HRA reserves are examined in more detail later in this section.

2023/24 Revenue Forecast Update

General Fund

On 21 February 2024 Cabinet considered the 2023/24 Revenue Forecast Report which
provided the latest general fund revenue forecast for 2023/24, as of the 30 November
2023, which was an overspend of £29.9 million equal to 10.4% of the original 2023/24
net revenue budget. Significant forecast overspends are detailed in the following
paragraphs:

Temporary Accommodation - The 2023/24 Revenue Forecast Report explained that the most
significant overspend related to temporary accommodation costs of £17.3 million (58% of
the total budget variance] and as already identified in this report this forecast overspend
followed a final overspend of £7 million for the prior year.

08 abed

The report explained that the forecast overspend was being predominately driven by the
cost-of-living crisis, a lack of availability of affordable temporary accommodation leading to
Council’s reliance on housing residents at risk of homelessness in expensive hotel
accommodation. The report explained that the Council has taken action to mitigate further
temporary accommodation overspends and a task force had been set up to work to find
ways in which to bring down the variance.

As part of our work, we have also established that on 7 June 2023 Cabinet considered a
report on homelessness in Enfield. The report summarised the national and local pressures
impacting temporary accommodation including rising private sector rent levels, inadequacy
of the Housing Benefit Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rates and shortages in local affordable
accommodation. The report also explained that the supply of temporary accommodation
had also fallen, due to landlords leaving the market, in part due to the limitations of LHA
rates, and the number of households being accommodated in hotels has risen to over 200
and the cost of the provision to the Council was £850,000 per month which was
unsustainable.

In consideration of these factors the report included recommendations for a new
homelessness service model and associated policy changes including the placement of
some service users at risk of homelessness out of borough and in parts of the country where
the LHA would cover all or most of the rent with a stated aim to end the use of hotel
accommodation by the end of September 2023 and to deliver sustained reductions in the
use of temporary accommodation thereafter.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 18



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

2023/24 Revenue Forecast Update (continued)

The Council acted during 2023/24, to mitigate adverse budget forecasts by introducing
homelessness policy changes and through the formation of an internal task force to provide
an additional focus to managing budget variances. Additionally, from April 2024 uplifts to
LHA rates were introduced following announcements made in the government’s Autumn
Statement 2023 which may help to alleviate some affordability pressures within the system.
We also note the activities of the Council’s trading company Housing Gateway Limited
(HGL) in the supply of affordable housing and temporary accommodation to help mitigate
temporary accommodation costs incurred within the general fund. Matters relating to HGL
are covered in more detail later in this report.

However, despite this range of activity, the Council is being significantly impacted by
budgetary overspends within temporary accommodation during 2023/24 and these
variances present risk to the Council’s overall financial sustainability. It is vital the efficacy of
Council activity to reduce adverse temporary accommodation budget variance are closely
monitored, reported and assessed by those charged with governance, in additional to the
current financial monitoring reports, and this leads to an improvement recommendation. We
recommend the Council provides an update report to Cabinet, during 2024/25, in respect of
temporary accommodation service and the progress of Council activities to mitigate
temporary accommodation budget variances. The report should also include updates in
respect of:
* The impact and appraisal of the Council’s placement policy and new service model,
introduced during 2023/24.
* The activities and impact of the temporary accommodation task force and HGL in
mitigating temporary accommodation expenditure.
* Progress in respect of the Council’s stated aim to end the use of hotel accommodation.

Please refer to improvement recommendation 1on page 41.

Children’s Services - The 2023/24 Revenue Forecast Report stated that children services were
forecast be overspent by £4.1 million driven by higher than budgeted costs in particularly in
the area of looked after children with external care purchasing projected to be overspent by
£3.6 million due to a higher than anticipated increase in demand including several large
sibling groups requiring care placements. The report outlined a number of activities being
undertaken by the Council to manage overspends in Children’s Services but explained that
the adverse variance of £4.1 million assumed the Council would be able to manage this
specific and contain any further in year growth.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Pay Award - The 2023/24 budget estimated a 4% pay award (£7.3 million), however the
2023/24 Revenue Forecast Report explained the final agreed pay award was £3.7 million
higher than the original assumption made by the Council when the budget was sent and
reflecting the ongoing and significant impact of rising pay inflation on the Council and
others within the sector.

The 2023/24 Revenue Forecast Report also explained other significant overspend areas
including the property directorate (£1.9 million), mainly due to an increased level of
reactive property maintenance works in respect of Council owned buildings with the report
noting that the service was actively working on ‘deep dive’ initiatives to mitigate further
overspends. Parking services also forecast an underachievement £1 million of income due
to a fall in enforcement and parking tariff income. We have been informed by the Council
that a planned area of Council activity for 2024/25 will be assessing this area of service
delivery to maximise income and service efficiency.

The Council’s 2023/2Y4 Revenue Forecast Report also explained that a further £3.7 million of
potential net overspend was being flagged as risk but not included in the reported
variance, and if these risk items materialised then the forecast overspend would deteriorate
further to £33.6 million. Any overspend would be required to be funded from Council
general fund reserves with the report noting that general fund reserves are sufficient to
cover the 2023/2Y4 forecast pressure but would the level of reserves would not be sufficient
if pressures cannot be contained and mitigated.

T8 abed

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023/24

On 31 May 2024, the Council published its draft statement of accounts for 2023/24. This
included the Council’s final outturn for 2023/24, however at the time of this report the final
outturn was yet to be considered by Cabinet. The draft statement of accounts for 2023/24
identified the general fund final outturn was an overspend of £39.4 million which
represented a steep rise in the adverse variance following the Quarter 3 Forecast. We
understand from the Council that the worse than predicted overspend was in part due to a
£6.8m overspend relating to a rise in the number of Housing Benefit claims for supported
accommodation where the full costs cannot be reclaimed from central government and the
Council was actively responding to the issue. The 2023/2Y4 general fund adverse variance
will be required to be funded from Council reserves and the worsening position will further
impact the Council’s general fund reserves impacting the Council’s financial sustainability
and these factors are included in a wider key recommendation later in this report.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 19



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

2023/24 Revenue Forecast Update (continued)
HRA

On 17 January 2024 Cabinet considered the HRA Forecast Report which provided
the latest general HRA forecast for 2023/24, as of the 30 November 2023, which
was an overspend of £2.2 million. The forecast being adversely affect by an
overspend of £2.9 million on responsive repairs caused by steep inflationary rises
on materials and contractor costs, a rise in emergency repairs and works relating
to matters of housing compliance.

Energy, wage and contract inflation led to an overall forecast overspend of £0.9 million
with the report explaining the repairs budget remained under close supervision and
management in order to control expenditure and mitigate overspends. The HRA
Forecast Report also explained that rapidly rising interest rates had resulted in £1.2
million of additional investmentincome derived from HRA balances and reserves.

The HRA Forecast Report provided an informative summary of how inflationary
pressures, matters of housing compliance and rising interest rates had impacted the
original set budget and the report outlined actions being taken the Council to mitigate
further variances which represents good practice.

Budget 2024/25

General Fund

On 22 February 2024, Full Council considered the 20214/25 Budget Report which
recommended a balanced net revenue budget of £318.5 million for 2024/25, a
1.01% increase from the prior year.

The budget report explained the 2024/25 budget had been set within an extremely
challenging financial environment with announcements in the governments Autumn
Statement 2023, and the local government finance settlement 2024/25 being
viewed by the Council, as offering limited support to reduce immediate and
ongoing financial pressures and the increases in government grant funding, and
was insufficient to meet all of the Council’s cost pressures of £48.6 million for
2024/25, principally resulting from increased social care demand, high temporary
accommodation costs and the ongoing impacts of inflation increases on services,
pay and contracts.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

For 2024/25 the Council’s SFA was £120.6 million, (increase of £10.5 million from the
prior year). The Council also received a total social grant of £27.8 million, (an increcse
of £6.7 million from the prior year). However, the report explained this additional
funding was partially offset by associated government reductions on the Council’s
services grant which was £0.5m for 2024/25 (a reduction of £2.6m from the prior year).

The budget report set out that the Council would also receive a further £8.4 million in
adult social care funding for 2024/25 from the adult social care market sustainability
and improvement fund (now incorporating the workforce fund grant) and adult social
care discharge fund.

The budget Report explained that the Council would receive an improved better care
fund grant of £11.7 million for 2024/25, which was maintained at prior year levels, a ring
fenced public health grant of £19 million for 2024/25 which represented an increase of
£0.4 million on the finalised health grant level for the prior year and a homelessness
prevention and rough sleeping initiative funding of £12 million with the report noting this
level is unlikely to be sufficient to match the growing homelessness pressures faced by
the Council.

The 2024/25 Budget Report provided an extensive breakdown, explanation and impact
of the key components of the local government finance settlement for 2024/25 which
supports transparency and demonstrates good practice.

The report set out the net Council tax base for 2024/25 which increased to an estimated
102,954 Band D equivalents (based on a collection rate of 94.6%) representing a rise of
6,160 from the prior year. This significant increase in the tax base resulted primarily to
reduction in the level of entitlement afforded within the Council Tax Support Scheme
(CTS) for 2024/25.

CTS supports residents on a low income to meet their council tax liabilities and is
awarded as a reduction on a council taxpayers bill. Alongside the 2024/25 Budget
Report, full Council considered and subsequently adopted proposals to reduce scheme
entitlement with the Council explaining the recommended reductions in entitlement were
being proposed in the context of the acute financial challenges being faced by the
Council, in consideration that the CTS scheme is the Council’s largest area of
discretionary spend, and benchmarking demonstrated that the Council’s costs were the
highest in London (£40.7 million per annum).

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 20

28 abed



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Budget 2024/25 (continued)
Changes to the CTS scheme for 2024/25 included:

* restricting council tax support to a maximum Band C council tax liability.

* introducing a minimum non-dependant deduction for most households with other
adults living in the property and increasing the current deductions by 20%.

* standardising the minimum payment for most working age claimants at 50%
(excluding war widows and single people under 25 including care leavers) .

The changes outlined above deliver £14.3 million in costs savings for 2024/25, shared
with precepting authorities, with the Council’s net saving being £5.8m, for 2024/25,
after the assumed collection rate and bad debt impacts of £3.7m, and an additional
£1.5m to enhance the Councils hardship fund and welfare support offer intended to
help mitigate impacts to those most affected by the changes.

The Council’s assessment of this area of discretionary spending demonstrates the
Council is proactively addressing the financial challenges it faces, whilst many in the
sector are choosing to keep levels of CTS entitlement unchanged.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The Council has stated that the impact of the CTS scheme changes on council tax
collection rates will be routinely monitored throughout 2024/25, and we understand an
internal Council working group will continue to assess the impact of the changes during
2024/25.

Additionally, the Council has assumed the scale of the changes would adversely impact
council tax collection rates and the Council has increased its bad debt provision and
assumed a reduced council tax collection rate within its financial planning for 2024/25.

However, the reductions in scheme entitlement will impact 29,100 residents who will be
required to pay a higher contribution towards their council tax costs and could create
in some instances a tipping point of affordability, which in turn could impact the level of
council tax income received by the Council, over and above assumptions made and
despite the additional support put in place, which could create financial risk to the
Council. These factors lead to an improvement recommendation. We recommend the
impact of the CTS scheme changes, introduced for 1 April 2024, should be to be subject
to enhanced budget monitoring, and assessed by those charged with governance,
regularly during 2024/25. This will ensure the financial and wider impacts of scheme
changes are assessed frequently and supported by appropriate oversight.

€8 abed

Please refer to improvement recommendation 2 on page 42.

The 2023/24 Budget Report recommended an annual council tax increase of 4.99% for
a band D property comprising of a 2.99% core increase and a 2% adult social care
precept to help fund adult social care demand pressures. Although the budget report
explained the 2% adult social care precept proposed for 2024/25 will generate £2.9m in
additional council tax, however, the inflationary and demographic pressures in adult
social care for 2024/25 total £9.7m further demonstrating the financial pressures being
managed by the Council in respect of social care services. The increase of 4.99%,
combined with the tax base growth, would result in a total £7.3 million of additionall
council tax income in comparison to the previous year.

The 2024/25 Budget Report itemised budgetary growth items totalling £48.6 million that
had been built into the 2024/25 budget and included £17.2 million of inflation growth, in
respect of services, selected contracts, utilities and pay. These inflationary pressures
remained the highest aggregated growth item but was lower that the level of inflation
growth in the prior year (£23.3 million) indicative of falling inflation.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 21



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Budget 2024/25 (continued)

Rising demand within social care and special educational need transport resulted in
£11.4 million of budget growth for 2024/25, despite proactive action taken by the
Council to limit rising expenditure through cost control panels in children’s services and
demand management activities in adult social care.

The 2024/25 Budget Report explained that the single most significant pressure and risk
was the cost of temporary accommodation with £7.7 million of growth included within
the 2024/25 budget. The budget report explained that recent increases in government
funding this had not been sufficient to meet rising costs and in consideration of the
ongoing financial risk around the cost of temporary accommodation the Council had
also formed a specific homelessness earmarked reserve of £10 million for 2024/25, to
mitigate any further pressures, created from transfers from within existing reserves.
Matters relating to temporary accommodation costs and oversight of Council activity
to controls this area of expenditure has already been referenced within an improvement
recommendation within this report.

The Council’s capital financing costs increased by £2.4 million in 2024/25 which was
lower than the £6.4 million originally estimated in earlier iterations of the draft 2021/25
budget. This lower level of growth resulted from the Council’s proactive review of its
capital programme to mitigate the revenue cost of capital financing. The estimated
charge for capital financing being £31.4 million in 2024/25 within was the Council’s
agreed affordability measure of annual capital financing costs being within 10%-12% of
total net revenue budget. The Council’s capital programme is covered in more detail
later within this report. Other significant growth items in 2024/25 included £2.3 million
increase in the levy payable to North London Waste Authority reflecting additional
costs to the North London Heat and Power Project and £2.4 million one off cost relating
to a technical capitalisation accounting adjustment.

As in the prior year the Council’s 2024/25 Budget Report included reference to a widely
promoted public budget consultation conducted during the period 11 December 2023 to
12 January 2024 and a summary of consultation responses was included within the
suite of budget papers.

The report clearly articulated the significant financial risks being managed by Council
and how the Councils financial resilience was being eroded by the impact of rising
homelessness levels and reducing reserve levels. The adequacy of Council reserves is
covered in more detail later on in this report.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

HRA

On 22 February 2024 full Council also considered the HRA Budget and Rent Setting
Report 2024/25. The Council increased social rent charges by the governments
maximum permitted amount being 7.7%. Proposed tenants service charges were set out
and clearly explained, with the level of service charges for 2024/25 for those tenants
and leaseholders increasing by an average of 11%.

The 2024/25 HRA Budget Report set out the HRA revenue budget which forecast HRA
revenue income to be £81.1 million, with the main element being rents and services
charge income of £71.8 million, an increase of £7.5 million from the prior year.
Commercial rents, leaseholder charges and investment income totalled £9.3 million for
2024/25, an increase of £0.8 million from the prior year, reflecting the impact of interest
rate and inflation rises on these income streams.

Forecast HRA revenue expenditure for 2023/24 was also £81.1 million and included £26.3
million supervision and management charges, which included an assumed 3.5% pay
award, responsive repairs and maintenance expenditure of £17.5 million, up from £15.1
million in the prior year, reflecting inflationary increases and additional costs incurred
in respect of regulatory compliance works. HRA financing costs for 2024/25 where
forecast to be £15.5 million, which was £0.3 million less than the prior year, due to
marginally lower borrowing levels in 2024/25. The 2024/25 also included a £16 million
contribution to HRA reserves. The Council’s HRA borrowing commitment for 2024/25,
and contribution to reserves, was significant, reflecting the Council’s ambitious 10 year
£900 million capital programme aimed to invest in existing Council stock and also to
deliver 3,500 new Council homes.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

The DSG is a budget allocated in four blocks, including schools, early years, high
needs, and central school services. However, the Council has been spending more
than the funding provided and has been in a deficit position, that is increasing
year on year, attributable to the High Needs Block (HNB), which is a type of
funding to support children and young people with special educational needs
(SEN). The Council’s 2024/25 Budget Report stated that even though that there
had been year on year reductions in the overall school population, the number of
high needs learners continues to rise and that there was a continuing risk that this
may lead to further unfunded costs to the school’s budget, as the current
government funding arrangements does not fully cover the costs of the additional
places needed for children with SEN.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 22

8 abed



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

The 2024/25 Budget Report set out the DSG and the Schools Budget for 2024/25. The DSG allocation for 2024/25 being
£1431.8 million an overall increase of 7.65% from the prior year. The 2024/25 budget report included an appendix which
summarised service risks which included budgetary risks relating to DSG funding specifically relating to rising number of
children with special education need (SEN) which could lead to unfunded costs to the schools' budget further impacting
existing DSG cumulative deficits. The budget report carried inconsistencies in relation to the actual amount of the Council’s
cumulative DSG deficit, however, the Council has clarified the DSG deficit data for the period 2019/20 to 2023/24. The
Council’s DSG cumulative deficit is identified in Figure 1 below:

17.89

DSG Cumulative Deficit

£m
8.05
12.62
15.24

448

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Financial Year

Figure 1 DSG cumulative deficit identifies that the Council DSG was forecast to increase to £17.89 million by 31 March 2024
(as stated in the Quarter 3 2023/24 Revenue Forecast update presented to Cabinet on 7 February 2024). A statutory
override has been allowed by the government which currently allows the Council, like others in the sector, to treat the deficit
as d negative reserve however this mechanism is temporary and due to end in March 2026. We understand from the Council
that during 2020/21 steps were taken by the Council, including the commissioning of external advice, to identify interventions
that could support more sustainable spending with the HNB, despite this the DSG deficit had continued to increase. We have
been informed by the Council that Enfield has the highest ratio of EHCPs, per 1000 population (52.8), then elsewhere in
England (42.5) , with London averaging 42.5 EHCP's per 1000 population and work is scheduled to understand the reasons
for such prevalence.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Dedicated Schools Grant Deficits

On 12t December 2022, the UK Government
announced that it would be extending statutory
override for the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG] in
England for the next 3 years, from 2023-24 to 2025-
26. By the time this period elapses, the statutory
override will have been in place for six years.

Recent estimates put the total national deficit for
local authorities in tens of billions by March 2023.
Whilst statutory override remains in place, there is no
requirement to make provision from general reserves
for repaying the deficit. Reforms and savings targets
have been agreed with those local authorities with
the biggest deficits. However, all local authorities
need to focus on managing (and reducing) their
deficits - because how these will crystalize as
liabilities in 2026 is not clear.

Within DSG, the High Needs Block has proved
particularly problematic. The Block is there to support
children with special educational needs (SEN), which
means providing more teaching staff and resources.
However, there is often a significant gap between
funding granted per child and the actual cost of the
teaching and other resources needed.

Gg abed

Every parent has the right to apply for support for
their child. An expensive appeal process also exists.
There are significant regional differences in numbers
of plans granted by local authorities and cost
management on those plans once they are granted.
Managing (and reducing) the growing DSG deficits
that arise as a result will be a challenge both for
financial sustainability and for maintaining the
overall quality and effectiveness of service provision.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 23



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) (continued)

All Council’s with DSG deficits are required to present a deficit management plan to the
Department for Education (DfE] for managing their future DSG spend. The Council has
submitted a DSG deficit management plan to the DfE on 2 January 2024 and an
update was provided to the Schools Forum on 17 January 2024. We have identified
significant inconsistencies in DSG deficit data when comparing the Council’s draft
statement of accounts 2019/20 - 2022/23 and the 2024/25 Budget Report to
information provided to the DfE on 2 January 2024 and the School’s forum on 17
January 2024, with divergence noted in DSG deficit trajectory data. For example, DSG
deficit data provided to DfE on 2 January 2024 forecast a DSG defect of £67 million by
2029/30 whereas DSG deficit data provided to Schools Forum on 17 January 2024
forecast a DSG surplus of £87 million by 2029/30.

We also note that Cabinet considered the Quarter three 2023/24 Revenue Forecast
update Report on 7 February which forecast the DSG deficit to be £17.89m as of 31
March 2024. However, the Council have since published its draft (unaudited) statement
of accounts for 2023/24 on 31 May 2024, within which the DSG deficit is stated to be
£14.75 million, a reduction of £3.14 million form the quarter three forecast. Although this
is a better-than-expected outcome the level of variance from quarter three to quarter
four 2023/2Y4 does further highlight issues the Council is encountering which is
preventing accurate forecasting of DSG expenditure.

We have been informed by the Council these inconsistencies have arisen both from
recruitment challenges within the finance team leading to inconsistent support to the
education service and due to inputting errors by the education service. We have
established that the finance team responsible for supporting the people service area
[Adult’s Social Care, Public Health, Children’s Social Care, Education and Sohools] has
been impacted by vacancies, absence, and workload backlogs during 2023/24. The
Council has informed us that they have been proactively managing the issues, and
from November 2023, seconded resource within this specific area of the finance team,
are actively recruiting to new posts and working to improve team processes and
functions. These matters are included within a wider key recommendation later in this
report.

In consideration of the level of the Council’s DSG deficit, the DfE has invited the Council
to be part of the Delivering Better Value in SEND programme (DBV) to support Council’s
improve delivery of services for children with SEND while ensuring services are
financially sustainable. On 11 April 2024, the Finance and Scrutiny Performance Panel
considered a report in respect of SEND framework and funding which included an

updated on the Council’s participation in the DBV programme.
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The report stated the Council had been working with DfE as part of the DBV programme
since 2022/23 and as part of this work the DfE had provided additional funding of £1m
over the financial years 2023/24 and 2024/25, to support a series of Council
workstreams intended to support transformation of SEN provision and to reduce the
level of deficit on the HNB however these workstreams had been delayed as the Council
was seeking to recruit additional posts to carry forward and implement the workstreams
associated with the DBV programme, although we now understand from the Council this
resource has been recently secured.

The Council has taken steps to assess reasons for overspending and understand HNB
demand however the level of DSG deficit creates financial risk to the Council especially
in consideration of the overall low levels of general fund reserves held by the Council.
Should the governments statutory override be removed, the Council would need to use
reserve balances to meet the shortfall, which creates significant financial risk to the
Council. The Council has not forecast this potential call on reserves from 1 April 2026 in
its medium-term financial plan.

9g abed

Additionally, inconsistencies in DSG deficit financial data, driven by finance team
resourcing issues and lack of internal controls within the people service area together
with the delay in implementing DBV interventions to reduce DSG deficit levels indicates
a lack of an effective approach in managing the Council’s DSG deficit.

These factors have been identified as a significant weakness and leads to a key
recommendation. We recommend the Council needs to place a significant focus on
developing, modelling and implementing interventions which will support the
management and reduction of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit.

Additionally, the Council should ensure that specific training is provided to school's
forum members in matters relating to DSG deficit, progress in respect of managing DSG
deficit interventions are regularly overseen by those charge with governance, and
financial risks relating to the DSG deficit are added to the Council corporate risk
register.

We also recommend the Council ensures finance team capacity provided to the people
service in the development of DSG deficit management plans is sufficient and
additional internal controls are established within the people service to ensure accurate
data is provided to members and DfE.

Please refer to key recommendation 1 on pages 6 - 7.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 24



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Capital Programme - General Fund and HRA

During 2023/2%4 the Council has taken steps to fundamentally review and assess
the affordability of its capital programme in consideration of challenging
economic factors, to reduce financial risk and to support the overall financial
sustainability of the Council.

On 23 February 2023, full Council considered the Council’s Capital Strategy and Ten-
Year Capital Programme 2023/2%4 to 2032/33 Report that included the Council’s
proposed capital projects for both the General Fund and HRA with total proposed
Council capital expenditure of £1.8 billion between 2023/24 to 2032/33.

Total planned capital expenditure for 2023/24 was £379.6 million. General fund capital
projects for 2023/24 had an original budget of £245 million, funded by o combination
of grants (£106.7 million), borrowing (£94.9 million), capital receipts (E14H.4 million) and
community infrastructure levy/developer contributions (£2m). Significant projects
included the Council’s major regeneration projections being Meridian Water
development and regeneration of the Montagu Industrial Estate.

HRA capital projects for 2023/24 had an original budget of £13L.6 million, funded by a
combination of grants (E47.1 million), borrowing (E45 million), capital receipts (£27.6
million), major repairs allowance (£12.3 million) and reserves (£2.6 million). Significant
projects included the Council’s investment in maintaining existing properties, estate
regeneration and development of new Council housing.

The Capital Strategy and Ten-Year Capital Programme 2023/2% to 2032/33 Report
clearly identified capital expenditure for 2023/24 by directorate but also how each
capital project aligned specifically to the Council Corporate plan which demonstrates
good practice. The report stated the 2023/24 - 2032/33 capital programme has been
developed in a very challenging economic environment, driven by steep rises in interest
rates and inflation, with these factors leading the Council to review the affordability,
viability and deliverability of all capital programmes and this review had resulted in
delaying, amending or stopping some planned capital projects.

The report explained that the Council’s review of the Capital Programme will continue
during 2023/24 to ensure its affordability, and this review will include an assessment of
assets with the aim of right-sizing the Capital programme in the medium term.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

This would likely include the sale of low performing assets (capital disposals), with the
capital receipts re-invested to help pay off historic Council debt and to support the
creation of new capital assets.

We note that the general fund revenue cost of the capital programme was expected to
be £32.4 million in 2023/24 or 12.4% of the net revenue budget, which represents a
significant proportion of the Council’s revenue budget which could limit the Councils
ability to manage wider financial sustainability. The total 2023/24 revenue capital
financing budget was £28.6 million , resulting in a revenue budget pressure of £3.8
million if the programme was to be delivered in full. The Council explained the revenue
budget pressure, if realised, would be met from the Capital Financing Reserves. The
Council had sufficient levels of reserves to meet the revenue pressures relating the
capital programme, but reliance on reserves is not a sustainable and underlined the
need for the Council to assess the affordability of the Council’s capital programme. The
Council capital financing costs for 2023/2%4 are also referenced within the treasury
management section of this report.

On 13 September 2023 Cabinet considered the Capital Qutturn 2022/23 and 2023/24
Quarter 1 Capital Monitoring capital Report. This report detailed the 2022/23 capital
programme outturn and reported that the HRA capital expenditure for 2022/23 was
£99.9 million representing 74.4% of the capital budget of £134.2 million for 2022/23.
Significant areas of programme slippage related to the Council house development
programme due to challenges arising from volatile market conditions requiring the
Council to review the viability of some existing programmes. We consider the slippage
in the HRA capital programme justifiable.

/8 abed

The report also set out general fund capital expenditure for 2022/23 of £113.5 million
representing 32.2% of the capital budget of £352.2 million for 2022/23. The most
significant area of programme slippage included the Meridian Water development with
the report explaining the Council had revised downward budgeted expenditure in
relation to Meridian Water in recognition of the challenging construction industry
market conditions and the need to reduce the Council’s exposure to financial risk from
rising inflation and interest rates, with a revised Meridian Water business case being
developed by the Council to ensure all risks in relation to this programme were
identified. Matters relating to Meridian Water are covered in more detail later in this
report.

The Capital Outturn 2022/23 and 2023/24 Quarter 1 Capital Monitoring capital Report
explained that for quarter 12023/2Y4 the Council had only spent £25 million (6.6%) of its
2023/24 approved capital budget of £379.6 million.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 25



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Capital Programme - General Fund and HRA (continued)

The Council explained that the entire capital programme was again under review to
ensure capital projects where still affordable in consideration of the impact of interest
rates rises on the Council’s financing costs which was contributing to pressures on the
Council’s annual (general fund) revenue budget and the new capital strategy for
2024/25 would seek to reduce borrowing to help manage this risk. On 12 June 20214
Cabinet considered the Capital Programme 2023/24 Outturn Report which will be
considered in detail as part of our 2024/25 Auditors Annual Report.

On 22 February 2024 full Council considered the 10-year Capital Programme 20214/25
to 2033/34 Report which proposed Council capital expenditure of £1.5 billion over 10
years, this represented a significant reduction of £0.3 billion, when compared to the
prior year 10-year capital strategy. The Council explained this reduction had resulted
from the fundamental review of the capital programme specifically focused on
affordability.

The report also stated that from 2024/25 the Council would introduce an affordability
metric which would require the Council’s net debt financing costs to be between 10% -
12% of the annual net revenue budget and this would ensure that long-term debt
financing costs remain affordable for the Council. The introduction of an affordability
metric is good practice, and the boundaries are reasonable.

However, the reduction in the scale of the ten-year capital programme alone was not
enough to remain with the boundaries of the affordability metric and the Council would
need to reduce borrowing through maximising the use of capital receipts. The Capital
Programme 2024/25 to 2033/34 Report explained the Council would rely upon £90
million of projected capital receipts to reduce borrowing requirements across in ten-
year capital programme and that Meridian Water capital receipts (in addition to the
£90 million) had also been taken into account in forecasting financing costs over the
ten-year programme.

With the inclusion of these adjustments debt financing costs reduce to an average 6%
of net revenue budget in years 5 to 10 of the ten-year programme. However, the report
presented to full Council, did not disclose the amount of capital receipts anticipated
from the sale of Meridian Water homes, and how this would result in reduced financing
costs. This is included in a wider improvement recommendation later in this section.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Planned capital expenditure for 2024/25 was £315.5 million. General fund capital
projects for 2024/25 have a budget of £213.8 million, funded by a combination of
grants (£117.5 million), borrowing (E9t4.4 million), community infrastructure
levy/developer contributions (£1.8 million) and capital receipts (£0.1 million).

HRA capital projects for 2023/24 had an original budget of £101.7 million, funded by a
combination of grants (£36.4 million), capital receipts (£33.4 million), borrowing (£16
million), reserves (£10.3 million) and major repairs allowance (£5.6 million). Significant
projects included the Council’s investment in maintain existing properties, estate
regeneration and development of new Council housing.

The estimated charge for capital financing to the General Fund is £31.4 million in
2024/25 which equates to 10%, down from 12.4% in the prior year, of the estimated
General Fund Net Revenue Budget for 2024/25 and within the Council’s affordability
metric.

88 abed

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 26



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Capital Programme - General Fund and HRA (continued)

We also note that the 2024/25 Budget Report considered by full Council on 22 February
2024 highlighted that central government had recently consulted on the widening the
scope of how Councils could use capital receipts to support the wider management of
budget pressure. This indicates the Council is considering the use of capital receipts to
drive further affordability in the capital programme (currently permitted) but also if
permitted to support the alleviation of wider revenue pressures using one off capital
receipts. On 30 March 2024 Cabinet considered a confidential Disposal of Land and
Property Assets Report which detailed 24 capital assets for disposal over the period
2024-2026 and detailed the gross capital receipt values with the report recommending
delegated authority be provided to the Cabinet Member for Finance, and in
consultation with the Council, to market and finalise terms of sale.

The Councils ability to raise capital receipts, and the role of such receipts to support
the affordability of the capital programme and potentially (if permitted) to support
wider council financial resilience will require careful monitoring, governance and
oversight to ensure assumptions with the 10-year capital programme are met and value
for money is secured when disposing of capital assets, .

The Council’s own capital programme affordability metric relies on Meridian Water
asset disposals yet the intended value of these disposals, timelines and potential risks
were not detailed within the Capital Programme 2024/25 to 2033/34 Report, nor did
they form part of a confidential report, considered by full Council. We understand from
the Council this was for reasons of commercial sensitivity.

This leads to an improvement recommendation. We recommend the Council further
enhances the level of reporting, monitoring, governance and oversight in respect of the
proposed programme of land and property assets disposals (including Meridian
Water). To ensure those charged with oversight are provided with sufficient information
to assess:

* Financial implications and outcomes of the planned disposals.

+ Progress against the capital receipt assumptions (including Meridian Water)
detailed within the Council’s capital programme 2024/25 to 2033/34.

* Implications of any changes to the government’s current capital directives on
existing capital receipt assumptions.

Please refer to improvement recommendation 3 on page 43.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Meridian Water

Meridian Water is one of London’s biggest regeneration projects, neighbouring the Lea
Valley Regional Park, and is intended to create 10,000 Homes and 6,000 Jobs within a
new neighbourhood for London. The Council is acting as master developer to deliver
Meridian Water on a phase-by-phase basis over 25 years. In October 2019, Cabinet
approved the Meridian Water: Financial Model and 10 Year Budget which detailed a
required investment of approximately £531 million from Council over a 10-year period.

On 19 April 2023 Cabinet considered the Meridian Water Financial Model Report which
included an update in respect of the progress of Meridian Water project, set out
revised financial model as the primary financial viability tool for the Meridian Water
and sought Cabinet approval of Meridian Water Capital Budget of £248.1 million for the
period 2023/24 - 2024/25, ahead of Full Council adoption.

The Meridian Water Financial Model Report explained that since the original Meridian
Water financial model had been approved in 2019 there had been significant disruption
to the economic environment which had resulted in generational significant inflationary
rises, which was now impacting assumptions with the original financial model, and the
Meridian Water development had also been impacted by resultant changes to the real
estate market and housing infrastructure funding challenges, including the pausing of
proposed rail works.

68 abed

The report also explained the Council, proposed to commence, a voluntary provision to
repay borrowing association with Meridian Water from revenue budgets, in addition to
future Meridian Water capital receipts repaying related debt, reflecting changes in
minimum repayment provision best practice.

The report stated all of these factors presented significant viability challenges to the
original 2019 Meridian Water assumptions and the report explained the Council had
proactively responded to these challenges and determined that a new financial model
was needed to further improve the viability of the Meridian Water project.

The report stated the new financial model enabled the Council to test and monitor the
Meridian Water scheme’s overall viability, peak debt and risk exposure in addition to the
financial position of individual parcels which will help drive the Council’s strategy as
Master Developer.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 27



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Meridian Water (continued)

The Meridian Water Financial Model Report explained all assumptions in the financial
model had been updated to align with:

e Current market costs, values, and trends.

* Scenarios the Council can control and elimination of assumptions and scenarios it
cannot control as per Council’s risk tolerance.

The Meridian Water Financial Model Report set out core assumptions included within
the new financial model, provided comparative information to the 2019 assumptions, set
out details of sensitivity analysis undertaken, risks and mitigations and details of
external assurance provided to test the new financial model assumptions.

The report also provided detailed explanations of development phases and explained
that with initial phases now concluding the Council could consider future development
options that reduced financial risk to the Council and the Meridian Water development
strategy would continue to be reviewed by the Council during 2023/24 with a further
report to be presented to Cabinet once this review has been completed.

The Meridian Water Financial Model Report provided detailed summary of ongoing
Council activity to revise original assumptions within the Meridian Water financial
model to adapt to the rapidly changing economic environment, increase viability of the
project and reduce financial risk to the Council. Most of the report was published in the
public domain (with one confidential due to commercial sensitivity information) which
supported transparency in decision making.

Cabinet, on 21 February 2024 considered the Meridian Water Optimisation Business
Case Report. The entire report was not made publicly available as it was deemed to
contain exempt information as defined in the Local Government Act 1972.

The Council have provided us with the report, and we have considered the contents as
part of our work.

In summary the Meridian Water Optimisation Business Case sought Cabinet approval
to further improve the financial viability of the Meridian Water project.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The Meridian Water Optimisation Business Case Report summarised extensive Council
activity conducted during 2023/24, to improve the viability of the project and to help
ensure the Council met its best value obligations whilst reducing the revenue impacts to
the Council , especially in consideration of the wider financial challenges it faces. This
demonstrates the Council’s willingness to review existing activity which evidences agile
decision making by the Council which is good practice.

The Meridian Water project represents a considerable financial commitment to the
Council and there are significant financial risks and dependencies within the optimised
business case. These risk alongside the progress of the Meridian Water project will
require careful ongoing assessment, governance and oversight by the Council and
these factors are included in a wider improvement recommendation below.

We have been informed by the Council that there is an established regime in place to
monitor the Meridian Water project and associated risks including the Meridian Water
Executive Board, Regeneration Board, Meridian Water Project Steering Group and
quarterly updates to General Purposes Committee to consider the Meridian Water Risk
Register.

06 dbed

We also understand from the Council that on 26 March 2024 the Regeneration and
Economic Development Scrutiny Panel also considered a Meridian Water Update
Report. We do note that Meridian Water papers presented to both General Purposes
Committee and the Regeneration and Economic Development Scrutiny Panel were not
publicly available due to matters of commercial sensitivity.

In consideration of the significance of the Meridian Water project, the risks and
opportunities, and the financial implications to the Council we consider the governance
and oversight arrangements relating to the project could be reviewed and further
enhanced and this leads to an improvement recommendation.

We recommend the Council provides regular, formal updates, to Cabinet in respect the
Meridian Water Optimisation Business Case and overall project delivery. We also
recommend the Council seeks opportunities to publish non commercially sensitive
information relating to Meridian Water as part of these updates.

Please refer to improvement recommendation 4 on page 4.

Matters relating to capital receipt assumptions relating to Meridian Water have already
been included within an earlier improvement recommendation.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 28



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2024/25 - 2028/29 and Savings

On 22 February 2024, Full Council considered the 20214/25 Budget Report which,
which included a Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) that covered a five-year
period 2024/25 - 2028/29 and detailed an unfunded budget gap of £85.9m across
the MTFS period which represents 27% of the 2024/25 net revenue budget.

The report explained the Council’s MTFS had been formed within an environment of
economic uncertainty and inconsideration of demographic pressure on demand led
service and future savings and income generation proposals will be needed between to
balance the budget.

The MTFS did not contain any assumed growth in business rate income or reflect any
impact (positive or negative) of governments delayed fair funding review and the
business rates baseline reset, or any future increases in the council tax precept.

The Council’s MTFS 2024/25 - 2028/29 did not detail, within the Budget Report, different
financial scenarios in relation to levels of central government funding for local
authorities or other elements of financial variance such as varying rates of inflation and
the impact of alternative decisions that could be taken in respect of the level of Council
Tax charged.

The local government sector is operating with a significant degree of financial
uncertainty driven by short term local finance settlements, delays to local government
finance reform, and wider economic drivers such as generationally significant inflation
changes and pressure from demand led services.

Scenario planning can be a beneficial tool in supporting financial planning, can
enhance transparency and oversight to the budget setting process.

Although not raised as an improvement recommendation the Council could consider
introducing wider financial scenario planning as part of its budget process.

Assessing the reasonable best, worst and optimum financial scenarios when setting the
Council’s budget and medium-term financial plans would enhance the Council’s
strategic financial planning and support the Council’s financial sustainability, and
flexibility, to accommodate a range of potential scenarios.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The Council’s MTFS 2024/25 - 2028/29 detailed an unfunded budget gap as identified
in Figure 2 below:

2024/25 2025/26 [2026/27 |2027/28 2028/29
Remaining Budget Gap (Em) 0.0 30.26 21.72 21.34 12.67 85.99

Figure 2 budget gap within MTFS 2024/25 - 2028/29 identifies, a budget gap of £85.99
million for the period 2026/26 - 2028/29 which represents 27% of the 2024/25 net
revenue budget.

The Council’s general fund reserves are forecast to be £46.4 million as of 31 March 2025
therefore the Council does not have sufficient general fund reserves to support the
budget pressure identified in the MTFS 2024/25 to 2028/29 and reserves would be
exhausted by 2026/27. The level of budget gap necessitates the Council to find
substantial savings and/or new income streams over the next four years which creates
significant financial risk to the Council.

The Council does have a track record of general fund savings delivery with £228.7
million of savings delivered since 2010. As at Quarter 3 2023/24% the Council reported
that £12.3 million (78%) of savings were considered deliverable against a savings target
of £15.8 million for 2023/24 with unachieved savings forecast to impact the 2023/24
revenue outturn.

The 2024/25 budget savings requirement increases to £16.57 million in 2024/25 and the
scale of required savings for 2025/26 increases significantly to £30.26 million (1.8 times
higher) and underlines the magnitude of the savings requirement the Council is facing.

The Council has taken proactive action to manage the financial challenges it faces by:

* Implementing spending controls to carefully monitor and contain expenditure.

+ Organisational briefings have been held to disseminate the Council’s current
financial position and the Council budget setting process for 2025/26 has
commenced earlier than normal to allow for extensive planning

* In May 2024, the Council held a ‘Budget Fortnight’ where Council officers
participated in a programme of events to help support the identification of financial
proposals, including savings to close the budget gap identified in 2025/26. The
Council has informed us that this has resulted in additional savings being identified
earlier than planned and helped foster an organisational response to the financially
challenges being faced by the Council.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 29

T6 abed



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2024/25 - 2028/29 and Savings
(continued)

Despite this activity the Council faces significant financial challenges in the short to
medium term, due to the budget gap and level of required savings, and this creates
financial risk to the Council.

Additionally, we have already identified that the 2023/24 revenue outturn report
detailed a worse than forecast adverse variance (total overspend of £39.4 million) with
overspends being further impacted by an emerging budget pressure (£6.8 million) that
the Council became aware of in quarter 3 2023/24, relating to housing benefit subsidy
loss where there is an increasing material difference between the housing benefit
subsidy level and the amount that can be reclaimed from the government for supported
living accommodation. This has further and significantly impacted general fund reserve
levels. The level of Council general fund reserves are now of a level that offers limited
contingency.

All of the factors outline above combine to present a significant weakness in the
arrangements to support the financial sustainability of the Council in the short term
and leads to a key recommendation.

We recommend the Council places a significant and immediate focus on:

* Developing mitigations to contain further emerging budget pressures.

* ldentifying further planned savings, and wider alternatives to the use of reserves, in
the management of budget gaps identified within the Council’s MTFS.

These actions will support the Council to remain financially sustainable in the short
term.
Please refer to key recommendation 2 on pages 8- 9.

HRA Savings

On 23 February 2023 Full Council considered the HRA Budget 2023/24, Rent Setting
and Business Plan Update Report which stated the a £1m per annum efficiency saving in
Management and Maintenance has been built into the HRA Business plan until 2025/26.
These efficiencies saving would be delivered by:

* System improvements.
* Reviewing the management of voids, staff structure, service charges.
* Assessing the need of certain non-core services currently provided.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

On 17 January 2024 Cabinet considered the HRA Forecast Report which provided the
HRA forecast for 2023/24, as of the 30 November 2023, and stated ‘The HRA Business
Plan has an efficiency target of £1m to be achieved this financial year, work is ongoing
to achieve this target, including through a realignment of the structure. These savings
will ensure the HRA remains sustainable and remains within the recommended hurdle
rate levels.” The report provided limited information in respect of the wider range of
savings efficiencies referenced within the HRA Budget 2023/2Y% and did not quantify the
degree of savings that had been delivered during 2023/24 as in the case of general
fund budget monitoring reports. A more detailed analysis of the Council’s progress in
achieving agreed HRA savings would enhance budget monitoring reports, increase
transparency and strengthen oversight and this form part of a wider improvement
recommendation later in this report.

Council Reserves

On 22 February 2024, Full Council considered the 2024/25 Budget Report which
included a report of the Chief Finance Officer on the robustness of the adequacy
of the Council’s reserves in adherence to the requirement within Section 25 of the
Local Government Act 2003.

26 abed

The Chief Finance Officer stated the level of Council reserves where low for the
Council’s size. Total general fund reserves, earmarked and unallocated, are
forecast to be £46.4tm as of 31 March 2025 and includes an unallocated general
fund balance of £14.4m.

The report explained the Council had undertaken a full review of Council reserves to
consider the adequacy in account of the financial risks facing the Council with the
report recommending the general fund balance to be maintained at a minimum of 5%
of the 2023/24 net budget and concluding there were sufficient general fund reserves to
manage the financial risks identified. However the report explained that should further
financial risks arise that are unable to be contained, there would be insufficient reserves
to cover these pressures, whilst noting the projected budget gap for 2025/26 was
significant.

The Council setting of a minimum level of general fund balance is adequate practice
but is based on the prior year net revenue budget. The 2024/25 general fund balance is
4+.5% of the net revenue budget which offers reduced resilience however we note the
Council stated within the Section 25 report that subject to availability of funds the
general fund balance will be increased to £15.8m during 2024/25.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 30



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Reserves (continued)

The Section 25 report concluded that the reserves where adequate but due to the level
of risk held, the overall financial position is significantly weakened, and the following
actions needed to be taken by the Council to support financial resilience:

* Containing the costs associated within homelessness.

+ To ensure a robust budget accountability regime in 2024/25 and instigating a
tighter cost control regime.

+  Toinitiate the 2025/26 budget process early.

* Ensure that capital receipts required to support the budget are maximised in value
and delivered on time.*

* The impact of the Council Tax Support Scheme proposals are monitored closely
* DSG recovery plan for high needs to be monitored and delivered.*

*  Monitoring of key risk areas is even more critical given there are limited reserves to
meet any additional financial risks and management action to address these will
need to be at pace.

* Evaluation of the proposed Government flexibilities to utilise capital receipts to
support Councils and how this may support the Council’s financial resilience.
(*please note associated key recommendation already raised in this report)

The sustainability of the Council’s general fund reserves, in the absence of identified
savings, has already been identified in a wider key recommendation on page 27.

The 2024/25 Budget Report also set out HRA reserves of £31.26 million which included
an HRA working balance of £4+.1 million (5% of total HRA revenue expenditure for
2024/25) and Schools’ Reserves and Balances of £1.3 million. With overall total Council
reserves forecast to be £76.29 million as of 31 March 2025.

Treasury Management

The Council sets a treasury management strategy annually as part of the budget
setting process. The Council’s treasury management activities are also supported by
external consultants which demonstrates adequate practice.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

On 15 November 2024 Cabinet considered the Treasury Management Mid-Year Update
2023/24 which outlined the activities of the Council’s treasury management activities to
31 August 2023 and the update stated over the reporting period the Council had
complied with all the prudential indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy statement approved by full Council 23 February 2023.

The Treasury Management Mid-Year Update 2023/2% included a summary of the
Council’s borrowing and as of 31 August 2023 Council has £1.1 billion of external debt
which remained below the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR - The Council’s
underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure) of £1.4 billion approved in the
Treasury Management Strategy, for 2023/24.

On 12 June 2024 Cabinet considered the Treasury Management Outturn Report
2023/24. This report explained that for 2023/24:

* The overall cost of capital financing to the general fund was £24.7 million and below
original estimates of £28.6 million.

* Capital financing costs were equivalent to 8.6% of the net revenue budget.

*  Due to lower-than-expected Capital financing costs the Council was not required to
call upon capital financing reserves as originally forecasts when the 2023/24
Capital Programme and Treasury Management Strategy were set.

*  The Council’s accumulated external debt as of 31st March 2024 was forecast to be
£1.25 billion which was below the Council’s CFR of £1.4 billion.

The Council’s Treasury Management Outturn Report 2023/24 reflected the impact of
the Council’s proactive review of the affordability of the Council capital programme
resulting in the Council demonstrating positive compliance to its own measure of
capital programme affordability and a key prudential indicator (CFR], which
demonstrates good practice and is an important component of the Council’s activity to
help alleviate the financial challenges it is facing.

The Treasury Management Outturn Report 2023/24 stated that during the 2023/24 the
Council was in compliance with all indicators, used to ensure its activities were within
well-defined limits.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 31

€6 abed



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Treasury Management (continued)

On 21 February 2024 full Council adopted the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement for 2024/25 which detailed the Council’s CFR for 2024/25 was £1.4 billion
and explained the Council CFR was expected to peak at £1.6 billion in 2028/29 but then
expected to reduce to £1.3 billion in 2033/3%4 due to planned capital receipts from asset
disposals. Matters relating to the Council’s ability to raise capital receipts, through
asset disposals, and the role of such receipts to support the affordability of the capital
programme has already been raised as part of an improvement recommendation earlier
on in this report.

The Council’s total capital financing costs, after charges, income and minimum revenue
provision, being £31.4 million for 2024/25 which was within the Council’s own
affordability metric as referenced earlier in this report.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2024/25 explained the Council lends
money to two of its own companies to Housing Gateway Limited (HGL) and Energetik ,
with the report explaining Energetik was reviewing its business plan to demonstrate that
it remains able to repay existing and future loans. Matters related to the Council’s
companies are covered in more detail in the next section of this report.

Council Companies

On 15 November 2023 Cabinet considered the Council Companies Performance
Monitoring Report which updated Cabinet on the performance of all Council
Companies as at Quarter two of 2023/24.

The Council Companies Performance Monitoring Report included the following key
updates:

Energetik

The company was established in 2015, and the Council owns 100% of the share capital.
The company’s objective is to develop, build and operate a district heat network to
serve homes/businesses with heat and hot water. The original 40-year business plan
was approved in 2017. Energetik is funded by Council onward borrowing and grants.
The total funding to be provided via the Council is £94 million.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The main revenue stream for the company is through the charging of connection fees
and heating sales.

The Council Companies Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter two 2023/24)
explained that the Council had advanced loans of £37 million to Energetik as of 30
September 2023. Grants of £17 million have also been passported to Energetik. Total
onward funding provided to Energetik by the Council amounted to £54 million as of 30
September 2023. The report also explained Energetik’s financial business model had
been impacted by adverse economic conditions including inflationary pressures, high
interest rates and revisions to the Council’s capital programme, and these factors had
resulted in less than homes, than forecast, connecting to Energetik’s heat network and
this has resulted in lower than forecast connection fee income, and subsequent revenue
income from heat sales. Consequently, there had been less revenue available to meet
Energetik’s operating costs whilst servicing capital loans that are required to develop
other parts of the heat network.

The report explained Energetik was able to generate cashflows from the 863 customer
connections that it has secured and has been able to service its debt to the Council,
however due to a delay in large Council developments and the impact on future
connection fees Energetik did require a working capital facility from the Council to fund
operational costs until such time additional income streams were realised and the
Council has agreed to forward Energetik a working capital facility of £3.5 million. The
Council Companies Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter two 2023/24) also stated
that Energetik remained solvent, work was underway (supported by external advice) to
refresh Energetik’s business plan due the challenges being faced and the Council and
Energetik were also reviewing the opportunities for external partnerships to facilitate the
long-term growth of the network and that Energetik would not entering any new
contractual commitments until this work is completed. The Council Companies
Performance Monitoring Report also included a confidential section which included
further financial information relating to Energetik which had been classed as exempt by
the Council and not publicly reported.

76 abed

On 12 June 2024 Cabinet considered a report - Energetik Operating Plan and Project
Plan for Strategic Review. The report was not publicly available as it was deemed to
contain exempt information as defined in the Local Government Act 1972. The Council
have provided us with these exempt reports, and we have considered the contents as
part of our work. In summary Energetik, in partnership with the Council, has revised the
its operating plan and now intends to review its strategic future with subsequent
recommendations being considered by Cabinet.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 32



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Council Companies (continued)
The report carried three recommendations as follows:

* To note Energetik’s Operating Plan 2023 - 2026, including staffing changes and
financials noted within.

* To note that while the Operating Plan seeks to mitigate divergences to the agreed
Business Plan, agreement to changes to the Business Plan will be the subject of a
future Cabinet report.

* To agree that officers take the next steps towards engaging with a Strategic Partner
by beginning the procurement of a Partner Selection Manager (PSM) and Legal
Advisor.

The revised operating plan referred to external advice that had been sourced in the
development of the revised plan - ‘Detailed finance and funding information Energetik’s
business plan is underpinned by a 40-year financial model that tracks revenues and
costs over the long term to assess the viability of the business. This model has been
independently reviewed and verified by EY, KPMG and most recently Teno Energy
Limited. The model is regularly updated with changes in costs and development
phasing’

The actual Energetik Operating Plan and Project Plan for Strategic Review also
referenced the role of external advice in respect of Energetik ‘Looking beyond the
Operating Plan, the Council and Energetik have been working together to help
formulate the Council’s plans on securing a future strategic partner. This has been
greatly assisted by the Energetik management team and the support of the council’s
Shareholder Adviser, of Inventa Partners’

The use of external advice can provide useful input to support decision making, but the
papers presented to Cabinet on 12 June 2024 did not provide a summary of the actual
advice provided, clearly explain which party the advice was directed to i.e. Energetik or
the Council (which would have assisted members to assess the nature and any degree
of optimism bias within the advice provided), how such advice supported proposed
activity and the risks associated with such proposed activity.

A summary of such advice and would have provided supporting context specifically in
relation to the recommendation to Cabinet ‘To agree that officers take the next steps
towards engaging with a Strategic Partner by beginning the procurement of a Partner
Selection Manager (PSM) and Legal Advisor’

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The Energetik Operating Plan and Project Plan for Strategic Review Report did include
reference to some factors which could impact the company positively or negatively and
outlined risks that could impact the Council if certain assumptions within the revised
Energetik operating plan were not met.

However, we consider the Council has not fully identified in the Energetik Operating
Plan and Project Plan for Strategic Review Report the full range of financial and non-
financial risks that could impact the Council if assumptions within the Energetik’s
revised operating plan are not accurate. The Council has not clearly identified any risks
identified by external advice provided to the Council as a shareholder, nor has the
Council clearly identified how such risks could potentially impact the strategic review
process. Worst, best and optimum scenarios were not included and there was no
reference to sensitivity analysis of key assumptions in the report, although we
understand sensitivity analysis was undertaken.

We also consider greater governance and oversight of decisions relating to Energetik
would also further support the overall decision-making process and increase
transparency. These factors, together, have been identified as a significant weakness in
arrangements and leads to a key recommendation.

We recommend the Council more fully identifies, quantifies, and carefully manages the
financial and non-financial risks associated with its involvement in Energetik and these
are assessed, along with proposed mitigations, in each stage of the Energetic project
plan for strategic review to be agreed by the Council during 2024/25 onwards.

We also recommend the Council satisfies itself that the planned governance and
oversight arrangements in respect of the Energetic project plan for strategic review are
sufficient considering the potential implications of decisions on the Council.

Please refer to key recommendation 3 on pages 10 - 11.
Housing Gateway Limited (HGL)

HGL was established in March 2014 is a wholly owned by the Council. HGL is
responsible for acquiring and managing properties in the private rented sector, to be
used by the Council to discharge its statutory homelessness duties. HGL has built up a
portfolio of 632 homes. HGL also includes a consolidated division known as Enfield Let
which is described as ethical lettings agency, assisting those who would otherwise
struggle to access private housing and aims to divert residents from presenting as
homeless to the Council.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 33

G6 abed



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Council Companies (continued)

The Council Companies Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter two 2023/24)
explained HGL’s property acquisitions are mainly financed by onward Council lending
and HGL was projected to have a loan balance of £120.1 million as of 1 March 2024 and
the underlying book value of the HGL fixed assets totalled £157 million at the end of
2022/23. The report also stated HGL had made a financial profit in the last two financial
years, was forecasted to make a profit in the current financial year (2023/24),
continued to remain solvent, and had supported the Council to mitigate temporary
accommodation costs during 2023/24. Matters relating to temporary accommodation
expenditure has already been identified within an improvement recommendation earlier
in this report.

The Council Companies Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter two 2023/24)
explained HGL’s business plan was currently being updated and on 12 June 2024
Cabinet considered the HGL Business Plan 2024/25. The report explained that HGL
property portfolio had grown during 2023/24 resulting in an overall portfolio of 647
owned properties and 685 leased (from the Council) properties. The report also
explained the draft HGL revenue outturn 2023/24 was in fact a £1.6 million loss primarily
due to the impact of in an adverse adjustment (£2.2 million) to the valuation of the HGL
property and stated HGL had reviewed its financial model and developed a 30-year
financial business plan and a Treasury Strategy that supports the 30-year plan, which
supports financial planning and is reasonable practice.

The HGL Business Plan 2024/25 stated HGL retained a property portfolio worth £161
million with borrowing at £133 million as of 31 March 2024 and confirmed HGL has
continued to meet all its loan obligations throughout the life of the company. HGL also
stated within the Business Plan that it planned to refinance its short-term loans
arrangements to minimising adverse interest rate exposure and this would in part
enable further growth in HGL’s acquisition programme, with the report stating HGL has
sufficient profit from operations to cover interest expenses.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

However, we do note that the HGL Business Plan 2024/25 requested Cabinet provide
delegated authority to the Council to provide a £2 million working capital facility to
HGL that can be utilised in case of cash flows not coming through in the expected
timescales.

The report explained this is required because of potential timing differences in lease
payments and nomination fee payments from the Council as a result of the temporary
accommodation transfer programme and the Council will work with HGL to minimise the
use of the working capital facility.

The HGL Business Plan 2024/25 provided and informative and transparent summary of
the company’s activities and financial position. The need for the Council to forward
working capital to HGL in 2024/25, its actual use and sufficiency will be assessed in
detail as part of our Auditors Annual Report for 2024/25.

96 abed

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 34



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Alignment of financial and other corporate plans
Sustainability

In 2019 the government passed legislation to bring all greenhouse gas emissions to net
zero by 2050. This was to align with the commitments in the Paris Agreement to limit
global warming to 1.6 degrees.

The Council declared a Climate Emergency in 2019 and on 15 July 2020, Cabinet
recommended to full Council the adoption of a Climate Action Plan 2020 which
explained how the Council will work with staff, suppliers, residents, businesses, schools,
statutory partners and government to become a carbon neutral organisation by 2030
and create a carbon neutral borough by 2040.

The Council’s Climate Action Plan 2020 detail specific activity that would be
undertaken in the following areas: The Council’s operations, Travel, Buildings, Waste,
Energy, Natural environment, and Influencing others.

The first area of the plan- ‘the Council’s operations’ set out how the Council had
established a baseline of its carbon footprint emanating from its own operations and
explained proposed Council activity, including offsetting, which would support the
Council’s to become carbon neutral by 2030.

The Council’s Climate Action Plan 2020 also set out how the Council’s carbon neutral
aspirations would be financed, coordinated and monitored which included a
commitment to publicly publish progress on an annual basis.

The Council’s Strategic Plan 2023-26: Investing in Enfield, adopted by full Council on 14
June 2023, has five priorities one of which is ‘Clean and green places’ which included
Council commitments to: Enhance biodiversity and protect our parks, open spaces,
woodlands, watercourses, wetlands, trees and shrubs, Enable active and low carbon
travel, Facilitate reuse of materials, reduce waste and increase recycling rates, and
Reduce carbon emissions from our buildings, street lighting, fleet and the goods and
services we procure.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The Council’s Climate Action Plan 2020 and Council Plan 2023-26: Investing in Enfield
can demonstrate direct alignment and interconnectivity, representing good practice.

In November 2023, the Council published an annual Carbon Emissions Review 2022/23
which reported that the Council was exceeding its carbon neutral trajectory and
reported a 30% decrease in the Council’s direct emissions over the original baseline of
the Council’s carbon footprint, which demonstrates adequate progress.

For the financial years 2020/21 and 2021/22 the Council had also published an Annual
Climate Action Progress Report, alongside the annual Carbon Emissions Review,
detailing progress against the all the key performance indicators set in the Climate
Action Plan 2020.

Our work has also established the Council has been actively reviewing and updating
the Climate Action Plan 2020. On 12 June 2024 Cabinet considered a revised Enfield
Climate Action Plan 2024.

The Council’s revised Climate Action Plan 2024 could have implications to the Council’s
financial planning and these factors will be considered in detail as part of our 2024/25
Auditors Annual Report.

Financial Planning

The Council’s Strategic Plan 2023-26 also includes five underpinning principles which
explains how the Council will operate to achieve its stated corporate priorities. The
principles being: fairer Enfield, accessible and responsive services, financial resilience,
collaboration and early help and climate conscious.

The 2024/25 Budget Report and MTFS 2024/25 - 2028/29, agreed by Full Council on 22
February 2024, states the primary purpose of the development of the MTFS 2024/25 -
2028/29 is to direct resources to deliver the priorities set out in the Council’s Strategic
Plan 2023-26 and explains how the MTFS directly supports the Council’s Strategic Plan
2023-26 principle * financial resilience’ through the Council becoming less reliant on
central government funding, through additional income generated through commercial
activity and also by the redesign of Council services.

London Borough of Enfield- Auditors Annual Report | October 2024 35

/6 abed



Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Alignment of financial and other corporate plans (continued)

Additionally, the Council's 10-year capital programme 2024/25 to 2033/34, also agreed
by Full Council on 22 February 2024, included proposed capital projects assigned and
ordered by corporate objective which provided direct synergy between the Council's
corporate and capital strategies representing further good practice.

Asset Management

On 13 September 2023 Cabinet agreed the HRA Asset Management Strategy which set
out how the Council will maintain, manage, and invest in its Council homes. The
Strategy explained how it aligned with the five priorities of Council’s Strategic Plan
2023-26 as follows:

* Clean and green places - ensuring land is well-designed and well-managed.

* Strong, healthy and safe communities - reducing carbon and improving
sustainability.

* Thriving children and young people - providing warm, safe and comfortable that are
good for health and wellbeing.

*  More and better homes - regeneration and development programmes delivering
more homes and capital works programmes improving the decency and energy
efficiency of our current homes.

* Aneconomy that works for everyone - ensuring opportunities available through our
capital programme procurement provides local people with skills and employment
opportunities.

Our work has established the Council’s Strategic Asset Management Plan (non HRA
physical assets) 2019 - 2024 is required to be updated. This will ensure the strategic
management of the Council’s non HRA physical assets aligns to the delivery of the
Council’s Strategic Plan 2023-26 and will help inform the Council’s planned programme
of land and property assets disposals and this leads to an improvement
recommendation. We recommend the Council updates its Strategic Asset Management
Plan (non HRA physical assets) 2019 - 2024 and ensures alignment to the Council’s
Strategic Plan 2023-26, the Council planned program